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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

October 7, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Ne\w Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a sole source amendment to an existing agreement with The Mental Health Center
of Greater Manchester, Inc., 401 Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103, (Vendor #177184 B-
001), to provide mobile crisis services and supports and Projects for Assistance in Transition from
Homelessness Program (PATH) services to individuals who are in crisis related to their opioid use
or post opioid overdose, by increasing the price limitation by $112,844 from $1,131,240 to
$1,244,084 with no change to the completion date of September 29, 2020, effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
19, 2019 (Item #17).

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years
2020 and 2021, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS
DEPT OF, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL
SCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $565,520 $0 $565,520

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $565,720 $112,844 $678,564

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $0 $0 $0

Total $1,131,240 $112,844 $1,244,084
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because tthe City of Manchester is experiencing a
disproportionate amount of individuals with an opioid use disorder (OUD) who are without
housing. The Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness Program (PATH) is
designed to eliminate homelessness for individuals with serious mental illness or co-occurring
mental illness and substance use disorder who are experiencing homelessness or are at risk of
becoming homeless. The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester is the State's approved
community mental health program designated to provide comprehensive clinical and
rehabilitative services to this population in mental health region seven (7), Greater Manchester.
Integration of these services within the CMHCs allows for more effective outcomes for those
served, including greater engagement with treatment and achieving housing stability.

The purpose of this request is to expand outreach to individuals with OUD or at risk of
OUD who are experiencing homelessness or are at risk of becoming homeless to engage them
in housing and behavioral health services. Two additional PATH workers will be added through
this amendment to serve individuals in the Manchester area.

Approximately 125 individuals will be served from the effective date of this contract
through September 29, 2020.

These services are part of the State's funding from the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) under the State Opioid Response (SOR) grant. The
State is using SOR funds to make critical investments in the substance use disorder system to
reduce unmet treatment needs, reduce opioid overdose fatalities, and increase access to
Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) over the course of the funding period.

The vendor is leveraging its existing role in providing behavioral health services through
its mobile crisis response team in the Greater Manchester area.

The vendor must coordinate all individual data and services with the individual's Doorway
to ensure that each individual served has the comprehensive assessment completed. The
Doorways are responsible for gathering data on client-related outcomes including, but not limited
to, recovery status, criminal justice involvement, employment and housing needs at the time
intervals listed above. This data will enable the Department to measure short and long-term
outcomes associated with SOR-funded initiatives and to determine which programs are
generating the best results for the clients served.

The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

•  Ensure that one hundred percent (100%) of individuals served, who enter care
directly through the vendor and consent to information sharing with the Doonvays',
receive a Doonvays referral for ongoing care coordination and Government
Performance and Results Modernization Act (GPRA) data collection.

• Maintain a greater than ninety percent (> 90%) Opioid Use Disorder Mobile Crisis
Response Team hospital diversion rate.

• Assess one hundred percent (100%) of individuals contacted who present with
suicidal ideation or behaviors.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals with
co-occuring opoid use disorders and mental illness who are experiencing homelessness may
not receive the specialized outreach and engagement needed to facilitate access to services.

Area served: Greater Manchester area.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health

Services Administration, State Opioid Response Grant, CFDA #93.788, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) TI081685.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

rey

spectfully submitted,

. Meyers
ommissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports for Opioid Use Disorder

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports for
dpiold Use Disorder Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports for Opioid Use Disorder contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
nonprofit with a place of business at 401 Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #17), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,244,084.

2. Add Exhibit A-1-Amendment#1.

3. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3 to read:

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service, and Exhibit
A-1, Scope of Service, in compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the
scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's.current arid/of future funding.

4. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection 4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits B-1, B-2, and B-3 Budgets.

5. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 13, to read::

13 The Contractor shall retain all records concerning PATH services in Exhibit A-1 for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the contract and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising there from are
resolved, whichever is later.

6. Add Exhibit B-3 - Amendment #1.

The Mental Health Center of Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

Greater Manchester, Inc. li/2
RFP-2019-BDAS-09-MOBIL-03 Page 1 of 3 Date _U£T_iy



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports for Opiold Use Disorder

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date
a

Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

Date^ Name: Wi Hiam l^idcr
Title: de n t / C BO

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of . County of /-////s A on _ before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person iaentified.direcfly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

nature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

• JOANNE C. DUCLOS, Notary Public
MyCommlsstbn Expires August 8,2023

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission-Expires: /?i^< ^ ̂ ^3

The Mental Health Center of Amendment #1 \ij^\ 0^
Greater Manchester, Inc.
RFP-2019-BOAS-09-MOBIL-03 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports for Opioid Use Disorder

The preceding Amendment; having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' Name: P/^oS
Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Mental Health Center of Amendment #1 . _^p
Greater Manchester, Inc.
RFP-2019-BDAS-09-MOBIL-03 Page 3 of 3 oIdUll ̂



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports for Opioid Use Disorder

Exhibit A-1 - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purposes of this agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that the
provision of outreach services through the Projects for Assistance in Transition
from Homelessness (PATH) program may require a lengthy engagement
process with individuals who may be difficult to engage, and may or may not
have been officially diagnosed with a mental illness at the time of outreach
activities.

2. Scope of Work (PATH)

2.1. The Contractor shall provide services under the Projects for Assistance in
Transition from Homelessness program (PATH), in compliance with Public
Health Services Act, Part C, to individuals who are homeless or at imminent
risk of being homeless and who are believed to have Severe Mental Illness
(SMI), or SMI and a co-occurring substance use disorder. The Contractor shall
provide services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Outreach.

2.1.2. Screening and diagnostic treatment.

2.1.3. Staff training

2.1.4. Case management.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide PATH case management services including but,
limited to assisting eligible homeless individuals with:

2.2.1. Obtaining and coordinating services including, but not limited to,
referrals for primary health care.

2.2.2. Obtaining income support services, including, but not limited to:

2.2.2.1. Housing assistance.

2.2.2.2. Food stamps.

2.2.2.3. Supplementary security income benefits.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide identified PATH worker(s) to conduct outreach,
early intervention, case management, housing and other services to PATH-
eligible clients. The Contractor shall ensure PATH workers:

2.3.1. Participate in periodic Outreach Worker Training programs
scheduled by the Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS).

2.3.2. Provide housing supports as determined by the Department.

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure that each PATH worker provides outreach efforts
through ongoing engagement with persons who are potentially PATH eligible

The Mental Health Center of Exhibit A-1 - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials.
Greater Manchester, Inc. ^
RFP-20I9-BDAS-09-MOBIL-03 Page 1 of 2 Date
Rev.09/06/18



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports for Opiold Use Disorder

Exhibit A-1 - Amendhient #1

who may be referred by street outreach workers, shelter staff, police and other
concemed individuals.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure that each PATH worker is available to collaborate

with other outreach workers, police or other professionals in active outreach
.  efforts to engage difficult to engage or hard to serve individuals. PATH
outreach is conducted wherever PATH-eligible clients may be found.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure, as part of the PATH outreach process, the
designated PATH worker assesses each individual for immediacy of needs,
and continues to work with each individual to enhance treatment and/or

housing readiness. The PATH workers' continued efforts may enhance safety,
as well as treatment and, ideally, help the individual locate emergency and/or
permanent housing and mental health treatment.

2.7. The Department reserves the option to observe PATH performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these activities may not
unreasonably interfere with contractor performance

2.8. The Contractor shall comply with all reporting requirements in accordance with
the PATH Grant.

2.9. The Contractor shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). The
Contractor shall ensure:

2.9.1. Programs providing sen/ices through this contract are familiar with
and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information that is
required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry.

2.9.2. Programs are aware that current NH HMIS policy can be accessed
electronically through the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.orq.

2.10. The Contractor shall inform the Department of any staffing changes in writing
no later than ten (10) days after the change occurs.

The Mental Health Center of Exhibit A-1 - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

Greater Manchester, Inc. ^ - j
RFP-2019-BDAS-09-MOBIL-03 Page 2 of 2 Date K I [ M
Rev.09/06/18
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE MENTAL HEALTH

CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on October 17, 1960. ! further certify that all fee.s and docuracnls required by the Secretary of State's office have
been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63323

Certificate Number; 0004505395

Ob

"53

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

Phl//o
Jame of th« elected OfficeLuMh*

do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected OfficecuMhe Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on September 24. 2019:
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President/Chief Executive Officer
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 24"^ dav of September. 2019.
(Date Amendment Signed)

4. William Rider is the duly elected President/Chief Executive Officer
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

(Signature of the Effected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE * ^

County of A/r'//5 X-

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this D- day of

By Phi///I .
(Name of Elected Offi^of the Agency)

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL) JOANNE C. DUCLOS , Notary Public
My Commission Expires August 8,2023

Commission Expires: ^ ̂0^3

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Reiationsfiip Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



ACORd' certificate of LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOrrVYY)

09/10/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificste holder is sn ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

CGI Business Insurance

171 Londonderry Turnpike

Hooksett NH 03106

contact Ten Davis

SK. Fa,. (868)841.4600 T»« (603)622-4618

AWRESS' TDavis(3)CGlBusinesslnsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance

INSURED

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

401 Cypress Street

Manchester NH 03103-3628

INSURER B
Philadelphia Indemnity '

INSURER C A.I.M. Mutual

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F \

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20 w/WC Renewal REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

MLICVErf
IMM/DD/YYYY)

WLievexA
(MM/DOrnfYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL 5DBR

nm POLICY NUMBER LIMITSLTR .
^ COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABiUTY

CLAJMS-MAOE I 4^ OCCUR

Professional Liability S2M Agg

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAUACE TO RgmtD
PREMISES (Ea occuiranc*)

MED EXP (Afty oo> p«f»Of>)

PHPK195e850 04/01/2019 04/01/2020
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY n jECT CZI LOC
OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

Sexual/Physical Abuse or

1,000.000

100.000

5,000

1,000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

S 1;000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANYAUTO

OOMfilNEOGINGLE LIMIT
(E« aec»d«nt>

$ 1.000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per pereon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPH1958852 04/01/2019 04/01/2020 BODILY INJURY (Per ecddeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenil

Medical Payments $ 5.000

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAJMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE
10.000,000

PHUB669112 04/01/2019 04/01/2020 10,000,000

DED XI RETENTION S 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PR0PRIET0R4>ARTNER/EX£CUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MendeloiylnNH)

II ye«, detciibe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

H ECC6004000298-2019A 09/12/2019 09/12/2020
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

500.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
500.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY UMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonel Remarlcs Schedule, may be attached if more apace la required)

"Supplemental Names" Manchester Mental Health Foundation. Inc.. Manchester Mental Health Realty. Inc.. Manchester Mental Health Services, Inc.,
Manchester Mental Health Ventures. Inc.

This Certificate is issue for insured operations usual to Mental Health Services.

State of NH Dept. of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE . .

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 26 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



The Mental Health Center
o/Greater Manchester

MISSION

To empower individuals to achieve recovery and promote
personal and community wellness through an accessible,
comprehensive, integrated and evidence-based system of
behavioral health care.

VISION

To promote prevention recovery and wellness, and strive to be
a center of excellence and sought after partner in developing
and delivering state-of-the-art behavioral health treatment
integrated within our community.

GUIDING VALUES AND PRINCIPLES

We treat everyone with respect, compassion and dignity.

We offer hope and recovery through individualized, quality
behavioral health services.

We provide evidence-based, culturally responsive and consumer,
family focused care.

We support skilled staff members who work together and strive for
excellence.

We pursue partnerships that promote wellness and create a
healthy community.

Revised and Approved by the Board of Directors on September 25, 2018
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INinFPFNDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

of The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying combining financial statements of The Mental Health Center of Greater
Manchester, Inc. and its affiliate Manchester Mental Health Foundation. Inc. (nonprofit organizations)
which comprise the combining statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the
combining statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
combining financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemenl, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We concocted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and air
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity s internal
control Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness ot
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

154 North Main Street, St. Albans. Vermorn 05478 j P 802.524.9531 | 800.499.9531 j F 802.524.9533

www.kbscpa.coin



To the Board of Directors

of The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the combining financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the individual and combining financial positions of The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester. Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
Supplementary Pages on pages 20 through 23 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information direcUy
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

St. Albans, Vermont
October 24, 2018



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester. Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Eliminating Combined

MHCGM Foundation Entries Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ 6,218,262 $  19,675 $ $ 6,237,937

Accounts Receivable, net 1,286,113 - -

1,286,113

Other Accounts Receivable 483,278 - -
483,278

Due From Affiliate - 28,525 (28,525) -

Investments - 3,880,108 - 3.880,108

Prepaid Expenses 394,375 -
-

394,375

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,382,028 3,928,308 (28,525) 12,281,811

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,

Net of accumulated depreciation 14,349,131 - - 14.349.131

TOTAL ASSETS $ 22,731,159 $ 3,928,308 $  (28,525) $ 26,630,942

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $  166,634 $ $ $  166,634

Accrued Payroll & Vacation, other accruals 3,250,340 710 - 3,251,050

Deferred Revenue 46,159 - -
46,159

Due To Affiliate 28,525 - (28,525) -

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 201,405 - -

201,405

Amounts held for Patients and Other Deposits 17,473 - -
17,473

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,710,536 710 (28,525) 3,682,721

EXTENDED ILLNESS LEAVE, Long term 415,165 -
-

415,165

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION 71,225
-

-

71,225

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities and

unamortized debt issuance costs 7,213,619 - - 7,213,619

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 11,320,614 3,587,909 - 14,908,523

Temporarily restricted - 107,392 -
107,392

Permanently restricted - 232,297 -
232,297

TOTAL NET ASSETS 11.320,614 3,927,598 -
15,248,212

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 22,731,159 $ 3.928,308 $ (28,525) $ 26,630.942

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation. Inc.

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2018

Foundation

REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPORT

Program Service Fees

Fees and Grants from Governmental Agencies

Rental Income

Other Income

MHCGM
Temporarily Permanently Eliminating Combined

Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Entries Total

$ 21.293,641

2,879.822

626,055

5,884,646

TOTAL REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPORT 30.684,164

$ 21,293.641

2,879,822

626,055

5,884,646

30,684.164

OPERATING EXPENSES

Program Services:

Children & Adolescents

Elderly

Emergency Services

Vocational Services

Non-Eligibles

Mutli-Service Team

ACT Team

Crisis Unit

Community Residences & Support Living

Other

Total Program Services

Supporting Services

Management and General

Property

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING REVENUE/{EXPENSES)

Contributions

Interest/Dividend Income

Investment Gain

Dues

Donations to MHCGM

Miscellaneous Expenses

NON-OPERATING REVENUE/

(EXPENSES), NET

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

4,372,890

320,757

1,934,951

592,568

1,382,534

7,284,290

3,270,457

4,689,604

1,552,426

4,372,890

320,757

1,934,951

592,568

1,382,534

7,284,290

3,270,457

4,689,604

1,552,426

1,149,581

26,550,058
- -

- -
26,550,058

3.210,540 . . (85,000) 3,125,540

1,001,958 1,001,958

30,762,556 (85,000) 30,677,556

(78,392) 85,000 6,608

461,811

26,587

85,336

111,728

215,623

(4,800)

(157,703)
(6,684)

20,000 (242,703)

157,703

324,444

138,315

215,623

(4,800)

(6,684)

488,398 243,500 20,000 (85,000) 666,898

410,006 243,500 20,000 - -
673,506

10,910,608 3,344,409 87,392 232,297 - 14,574,706

$ 11.320.614 $ 3,587,909 $ 107,392 S 232,297 $  • S 15,248,212

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Eliminating Combined

CASH AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Real Estate acquired with long-term debt

Interest paid

MHCGM Foundation Entries Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  410,006 $  263,500 3 $  673,506

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 631,889 - - 631,889

Unrealized gain on investments -
(163,957) -

(163,957)

Realized gain on investments -
(72,387) -

(72,387)

Decrease (Increase) in Operating Assets:

Accounts Receivable 1,410 -
-

1,410

Other Accounts Receivable 403,268 - - 403,268

Due from Affiliate 27,060 (27,060) -

Prepaid Expenses (257,073) - - (257,073)

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable (194,334)
-

-
(194,334)

Due to Affiliate (27,060) - 27,060 -

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities (112,131) - - (112,131)

Deferred Revenue (27,983) - -
(27,983)

Amounts held for Patients and Other Deposits 9,764 - -
9,764

Post Retirement Benefit Obligation (1,725) - - (1.725)

Extended Illness Leave 17,925 - - 17,925

NET CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 853,956 54,216 - 908,172

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant, and equipment, net (2,555,171) - -
(2,555,171)

Finance costs incurred (104,609) - -
(104,609)

Proceeds from sale of investments - 85,489 - 85,489

Purchase of investments - (138,793) - (138,793)

NET CASH USED IN

INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,659,780) (53,304) - (2,713,084)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-term debt reduction (169,956) - - (169,956)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (1,975,780) 912 - (1,974,868)

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,194,042 18,763 -
8,212,805

$ 6,218,262 $  19,675 $ -  $6,237,937

$ 7,680,000 $  - $ -  $

$  218,077 $  - $ -  $

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. {the "Center") a not-for-profit
corporation, organized under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental
health, and related non-mental health programs is exempt from income taxes under Section
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the organization qualifies for the
charitable contribution deduction under Section 170 (b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

In July 1990, the Center was reorganized and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.
(the "Foundation") became the sole corporate member of the Center. The Foundation is also
a 501(c)(3). The Foundation's purpose is to raise and invest funds for the benefit of the
Center.

In July 2017, the Center acquired commercial real estate in Manchester, New Hampshire
that it previously leased a portion of. As of June 30, 2018, the Center occupies
approximately 31,000 square feet of the approximately 65,000 square feet in the building.
The remaining square footage is leased to unrelated third parties and the entire building is
managed by an unrelated management company engaged by the Center.

Basis of Presentation

The combining financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center of
Greater Manchester, Inc. and its affiliate, Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc. All
inter-company transactions and accounts have been eliminated in combination.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Income Taxes

Consideration has been given to uncertain tax positions. The federal income tax returns for
the years ended after June 30, 2015, remain open for potential examination by major tax
jurisdictions, generally for three years after they were filed.

State Grants

The Center receives a number of grants from, and has entered into various contracts with the
State of New Hampshire related to the delivery of mental health services.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Depreciation

The cost of property, equipment and improvements is depreciated over the estimated useful
life of the assets using the straight line method. Assets deemed to have a useful life greater
than three years are deemed capital in nature. Estimated useful lives range from 3 to 40
years.

Vacation Pay and Fringe Benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on the programs.

Revenue

Revenue from federal, state and other sources is recognized in the period earned.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded based on amounts billed for services provided, net of
respective contractual adjustments and bad debt allowances.

Policy for Evaluating Collectabilitv of Accounts Receivable

In evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, the Center analyzes past results and
identifies trends for each major payor source of revenue for the purpose of estimating the
appropriate amounts of the allowance for contractual adjustments and bad debts. Data in
each major payor source is regularly reviewed to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for
contractual adjustments and doubtful accounts. Specifically, for receivables relating to
services provided to clients having third-party coverage, an allowance for contractual
adjustments and doubtful accounts and a corresponding provision for contractual
adjustments and bad debts are established for amounts outstanding for an extended period
of time and for third-party payors experiencing financial difficulties; for receivables relating to
self-pay clients, a provision for bad debts is made In the period services are rendered based
on experience indicating the inability or unwillingness of clients to pay amounts for which
they are financially responsible.

Based on management's assessment, the Center provides for estimated contractual
allowances and uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a
valuation allowance. Balances that remain outstanding after the Center has used reasonable
collection efforts are written off through a change to the valuation allowance and a credit to
accounts receivable.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Center maintained its estimate in the allowance for
doubtful accounts at 68% of total accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts
decreased to $2,697,713 as of June 30, 2018 from $2,814,022 as of June 30, 2017. This
was a result of an overall decrease in accounts receivable from $4,110,534 as of June 30,
2017 to $3,983,826 as of June 30, 2018. The allowance reflects this decrease accordingly.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Client Service Revenue

The Center recognizes client service revenue relating to services rendered to clients that
have third-party payor coverage and are self- pay. The Center receives reimbursement from
Medicare, Medicaid and Insurance Companies at defined rates for services to clients
covered by such third-party payor programs. The difference between the established billing
rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is recorded as allowances when received. For
services rendered to uninsured clients (i.e., self-pay clients), revenue is recognized on the
basis of standard or negotiated discounted rates. At the time services are rendered to self-
pay clients, a provision for bad debts is recorded based on experience and the effects of
newly identified circumstances and trends in pay rates. Client service revenue (net of
contractual allowances and discounts but before taking account of the provision for bad
debts) recognized during the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $21,293,641, of which

- $20,921,393 was revenue from third-party payors and $372,248 was revenue from self-pay
clients.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all short-term debt
securities purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received
with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets.

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Center or Foundation has been
limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction expires
(when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement
of operations as either net assets released from restrictions (for non-capital related items) or
as net assets released from restrictions used for capital purchases (capital related items).

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted by donors and to be maintained in
perpetuity. Income earned on permanently restricted net assets, to the extent not restricted
by the donor, including net realized appreciation on investments, would be included in the
statement of activities as unrestricted resources or as a change in temporarily restricted net
assets in accordance with donor-intended purposes.

Included in the Foundation's unrestricted net assets is $600,000 of board designated net
assets, which was the result of a board approved donation from the Center to the foundation
during the year ended June 30, 2015 of $600,000.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.
NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee Benefit Program

The Center maintains a tax-sheltered annuity benefit program, which covers substantially all
employees. Eligible employees may contribute up to maximum limitations (set annually by
the IRS) of their annual salary. After one year's employment, the employees' contributions
are matched by the Center up to 5 percent of their annual salary. The combined amount of
employee and employer contributions is subject by law to yearly maximum amounts. The
employer match was $464,473 for the year ended June 30. 2018.

Postretirement Medical Benefits

The Center sponsors an unfunded defined benefit postretirement plan covering certain of its
employees (employed prior to January 1, 1997). In 2008, all eligible active employees were
offered and accepted a buyout of the program leaving the plan to provide medical benefits to
eligible retired employees. See Note 8 for further discussion of the Plan.

For retirements prior to January 1, 1997, benefits are based upon quoted premium rates.
For retirements on or after January 1, 1997 up to June 30, 2007, the benefits are based on
monthly premiums frozen at their December 31, 1996 level. The plan is funded as premiums
are paid.

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

The Center has an occurrence basis policy for its malpractice insurance coverage. An
occurrence basis policy provides specific coverage for claims resulting from incidents that
occur during the policy term, regardless of when the claims are reported to the insurance
carrier. The possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in
excess of insurance coverage may be asserted against the Center. In the event a loss
contingency should occur, the Center would give it appropriate recognition in its financial
statements.

NOTE 2 CLIENT SERVICE REVENUES FROM THIRD PARTY PAYORS

The Center has agreements with third-party payers that provide payments to the Center at
established rates. These payments include;

New Hampshire and Managed Medicaid

The Center is reimbursed for services from the State of New Hampshire and
Managed Care Organizations for services rendered to Medicaid clients on the
basis of fixed Fee for Service and Case Rates.

Approximately 74% of net client service revenue is from participation in the state and
managed care organization sponsored Medicaid programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Laws and regulations governing the Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation and change. As a result, it is reasonably possible that recorded estimates
could change materially in the near term.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE

Due from clients

Managed medicaid

Medicaid receivable

Medicare receivable

Other insurance

Allowance

$1,842,016

305,365

517,135

205,506

1,113,804

3,983,826

(2,697,713)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER

$1,286,113

Amoskeag Residences $  6,131

BBH - Cypress Center 56,250

BBH-MCRT 99,707

BBH-IRB 5,250

Boston University 3,149

Catholic Medical Center 116,440

Cenpatico 58,108

Community Connection 12,165

Dartmouth 34,323

Farnum Center 2,088

Harvard Pilgrim 58,856

Manchester Community Health 8,460

Mobile Community Health 2,876

North Shore LIJ 7,026

Two Wall Street Tenants 8,989

Miscellaneous accounts receivable 3,460

$ 483,278



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.
NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the combining financial statements at market value as follows;

Cost Market

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Marketable Equity Securities

$  62,337 $ 62,337
3,398,652 3,817.771

TOTAL

Investment return consisted of the following:

Advisory Fees

Net realized gain
Annualized unrealized gain, net

$3,460,989 $3,880,108

$  (20,721)

72,387

163,957

TOTAL INVESTMENT GAIN $ 215,623

NOTE 5 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Foundation's investments are reported at fair value in the accompanying statement of
net assets available for benefits. The methods used to measure fair value may produce an
amount that may not be indicative of net realizable or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, although the Foundation believes its valuations methods are appropriate and
consistent with other market participant, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
measure the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value at

the reporting date.

The fair value measurement accounting literature establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This hierarchy
consists of three broad levels: Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quotes prices in active
markets for Identical assets and have the highest priority, and Level 3 inputs are
unobservable and have the lowest priority.

The Foundation uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to
measure the fair value of Its investments. When available, the Foundation measures fair
value using Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair
value. Level 2 Input valuation methods are described In detail below and Level 3 inputs were
only used when Level 1 or Level 2 inputs were not available.

Level 1 Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of mutual funds, equities and options are valued at the daily closing price as
reported by the fund. Mutual funds, equities and options held by the Foundation are open-
end and' are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These funds are
required to publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and to transact at that price. The
investments held by the Foundation are deemed to be actively traded.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The following table presents by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation
investment assets at fair value, as of June 30, 2018. As required by professional accounting
standards, investment assets are classified in their entirety based upon the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Description 06/30/18

Quoted Price In

Active Markets

For Identical

Assets

(Level 1)

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

(Level 3)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 62,337 $ 62,337 $ $

Fixed Income

Corporate Bonds

Mutual Funds;

Bank Loans

Diversified Emerging Mkts

Foreign Large Blend

Exchange Traded Fund

Foreign Large Growth

Health

Inflation Protected Bond

Intermediate Term Bond

Large Blend

Large Value

Large Growth

Market Neutral

Nontraditional Bond

Technology

World Bond

World Small/Mid Stock

569,776

170,137

166,396

279,219

306,740

180,050

145,841

67,219

106,129

869,404

187,936

219,400

51,217

126,524

126,815

148,712

96,256

569,776

170.137

166,396

279.219

306,740

180,050

145,841

67,219

106,129

869,404

187,936

219,400

51,217

126,524

126,815

148.712

96,256

Total $ 3,880,108 $ 3,880,108 $
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense as incurred and expenditures for major renovations are capitalized.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets being depreciated.

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2018:

Land

Buildings and improvements

Furniture and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

$ 2,143,708

15,465,893

2,358,028

19,967,629

(5,618,498)

$14,349,131

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $622,300.

NOTE 7 DEFERRED REVENUE

CIP Grant

Feed NH Grant

Great Manchester Charitable Trust

Miscellaneous deferred revenue

NH Charitable Foundation

Pearl Manor Senios Initiative Grant

Stigma Symposium

13,088

5,000

3.245

8

10,348

9,835

4,635

$  46,159

NOTE 8 EXTENDED ILLNESS LEAVE (EIL)

The following table sets forth the Center's funded status of EIL as of June 30, 2018:

Net Post-Retirement Health Cost:

Service cost

Interest cost

Net post retirement health cost

$  30,858

15,007

$  45.865

11



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 8 EXTENDED ILLNESS LEAVE (EIL) (continued)

Change in Accumulated Projected Benefit Obligation:

Accumulated benefit obligation at beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year

Balance Sheet Liability:

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

$ 397,240

30,858

15,007

6,858

(34,798)

$ 415,165

$ 415,165

Unfunded accumulated postretirement benefit obligation $ 415,165

Reconciliation of Accrued Costs:

Accrued post retirement health cost at beginning of year $ 545,874

Net post retirement health cost for the year 38,989
Contributions made during the year (benefits paid) (34,797)

Accrued post retirement health cost at end of year $_^50^0^

Estimated Future Benefit Payments:

2018-2019 $ 62.700
2019-2020 76,900
2020-2021 32,100
2021 -2022 31,700
2022 - 2023 24,800
2023-2028 172.200

Expected contribution for next fiscal year $ 62.700

12



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 8 EXTENDED ILLNESS LEAVE (EIL) (continued)

Change in Balance Sheet Liability;

Balance sheet liability at beginning of year $ (397,240)

Net actuarial gain arising during the year (6,858)

Increase from current year service and interest cost (45,885)
Contributions made during the year 34,798

Balance sheet liability at end of year $ (415.165)

Amounts Recognized as Adjustments to Unrestricted Net Assets:

Adjustments to unrestricted net assets from adoption of

of FAS 158 at beginning of year $ (148,636)

Net actuarial (gain) or loss arising during the year 6,858

Reclassification from amortization of net actuarial loss

recognized during the year 6,877

Unrestricted net assets not yet classified as NPBC
at end of year $ (134,901)

Unrestricted Net Assets Not Yet Classified As Net

Postretirement Benefit Cost:

Unrecognized prior service cost $
Unrecognized net actuarial gain or (loss) (134,901)

Unrestricted net assets not yet classified as NPBC
at end of year $ (134,901)

Unrestricted Net Assets Expected to be Reclassified as Net
Postretirement Benefit Cost in Next Fiscal Year:

Recognition net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss In next
fiscal year's expense $ (7,730)

The weighted-average discount rate used In determining the accumulated benefit obligation
was 4.22% at June 30, 2018.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.
NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 9 OTHER POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN

During 2007, the Center offered a buyout to employees who would have been eligible to
participate in the post-retirement health plan upon their retirement. As a result, no additional
employees will be enrolled in the plan. Only current retirees participate in the plan.

During 1997, the Center amended the plan to freeze monthly premiums at their December
31, 1996 level and to no longer provide the postretiremen! benefit to employees hired after
December 31, 1996. The weighted-average annual assumed rate of increase in per capita
cost of covered benefits (i.e., health care cost trend rate) was 4.22% for the year ending
June 30, 2018: and 4.00% per year for retirements that occurs on or after January 1, 1997,
until those retirees' monthly premium cap of $188 is reached.

Net Post-Retirement Health Cost:

Interest cost $ 2,673

Net amortization of (gain) 7,541

Net post retirement health cost/(income) $^0^214

Change in Accumulated Projected Benefit Obligation:

Accumulated benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 72,950

Interest cost 2,673

Actuarial loss 7,541

Benefits paid (11,939)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 71,225

FASB Balance Sheet Liability:

Accumulated postretiremen! benefit obligation $ 71,225
Fair value of plan assets ^

Unfunded accumulated postretiremen! benefit obligation $ 71,225

Reconciliation of Accrued Costs:

Accrued benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 166,358

Net post retirement health cost/(income) for the year (6,911)
Contributions made during the year (benefits paid) (11,939)

Accrued post retirement health cost at end of year $ 147,508
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 9 OTHER POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

Gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the fair value
of assets are amortized over the average remaining service period of active participants.

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine Benefit Obligations at June 30, 2018:

Discount rate 4.22%

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
health care plans. A 1% change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects:

1% Increase 1 % Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost components
of net periodic postretirement health care benefit cost $ 2.747 S 2.604

1% Increase 1 % Decrease

Effect on the health care component of the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation $ 72.882 S 69.651

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine Net Periodic Benefit Cost at June 30,
2018:

Discount rate 4.22%

Cash Flows

Estimated Future Benefit Payments:

2018-2019 $ 11,100
2019-2020 10,100
2020-2021 8.300
2021 -2022 7,200
2022-2023 6,100
2023-2028 19,700

Expected contribution for next fiscal year: $ 11.100

Change in Balance Sheet Liability:

Balance sheet liability at beginning of year $ (72,950)

Net actuarial gain or (loss) arising during the year (7,541)
Increase from current year service and interest cost (2,673)
Contributions made during the year 11.939

Balance sheet liability at end of year $ (71,225)
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 9 OTHER POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

Amounts Recognized as Adjustments to Unrestricted Net Assets:

Adjustments to unrestricted net assets from adoption of

of FAS 158 at beginning of year $ (93,409)

Net actuarial (gain) arising during the year 7,541

Reclassification from amortization of net actuarial loss

recognized during the year 9,584

Unrestricted net assets not yet classified as NPBC
at end of year $ (76,284)

Reconciliation of Accrued Costs:

Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized net actuarial gain or (loss) (76,284)

Unrestricted net assets not yet classified as NPBC
at end of year $ (76,284)

Unrestricted Net Assets Expected to be Reclassified as Net
Postretirement Benefit Cost in Next Fiscal Year:

Recognition of net Actuarial (Gain) Loss in next
fiscal year's expense $  (8,655)

NOTE 10 LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2018, the organization had available a line of credit with a bank with an upper
limit of $2,500,000. The line was not utilized as of June 30, 2018. These funds are available
with interest charged at TD Bank, N.A. Base Rate (5% as of June 30, 2018). The line of
credit is due on demand.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2018:

Bond payable to a bank, due July 2027, with interest only

payments at 3.06% through November 2025. Fixed principal

payments commence December 2025. Secured by specific

real estate. $ 5,760,000

Note payable to a bank, due December 2025, monthly principal

and interest payments of $23,433 at a 4.4% interest rate.

Secured by specific real estate. 1,750,044

Total long-term debt before unamortized debt issuance costs 7,510,044

Less: Current Portion (201,405)

Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs (95,020)

LONG-TERM PORTION $ 7,213,619

Aggregate principal payments on long-term debt, due within the next five years and
thereafter are as follows;

Year Ending

June 30,

2019 $ 201,405

2020 210,448

2021 219,897

2022 229,770

2023 240,086

Thereafter 6,408,438

$ 7,510,044

Interest expense for the year ending June 30, 2018 was $248,772. In accordance with ASU
2015-03, the amortization of debt issuance costs of $9,589 is reflected in interest expense.
The remaining balance of $239,183 is interest related to the above debt for the year ended
June 30, 2018.

17



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 12 LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Center leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases which expire at
various dates. Aggregate future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases
with terms of one year or more as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

2019

2020

2021

2022

$ 78,856

65,107

34,851
14.777

Rent expense was $70,579 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 13 LEASES IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LESSORS

In July 2017, the Center acquired real estate it previously partially leased located at 2 Wall
Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The Center leases the real estate it does not occupy
to non-related third parties. Aggregate future minimum lease payments to be received under
non-cancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more as of June 30, 2018 are as
follows:

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

$ 380,542
268,135

176,199

61,350
61,350

71,575

Base rent income was $479,731 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Amoskeag Residences, Inc. was formed by the Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester,
Inc. The board of directors for Amoskeag Residences, Inc. is comprised of members of
management from the Center. Included in accounts receivable as of June 30, 2018 is $6,131
due to the Center from Amoskeag Residences, Inc. The Mental Health Center of Greater
Manchester, Inc. is reimbursed for services it provides to Amoskeag Residences, Inc.. such
as bookkeeping services, insurance coverage, and repairs and maintenance services. The
amounts for the years ended June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Billed

Reimbursed

$  81.825

$  82.291
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 15 CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Center held deposits with TD Bank N.A. totaling $6,390,322 as of June 30, 2018. Of this
amount $97,704 is in excess of FDIC coverage of $250,000 and collateralized Federal
repurchase agreements totaling $6,042,618 as of June 30, 2018.

The Foundation held investments with LPL Financial totaling $3,880,108 as of June 30.
2018. Of this amount $3,380,108 is in excess of SIPC coverage of $500,000 and is
uninsured.

The Center grants credit without collateral to its clients, most of who are area residents and
are Insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables due from clients and
third-party payors at June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Due from clients

Managed medicaid

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

46 %

8

13

5

28

100 %

NOTE 16 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with professional accounting standards, the Center and Foundation has
evaluated subsequent events through October 24, 2018, which is the date these basic
financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition
as of June 30, 2018, have been incorporated into these basic financial statements herein.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

ANALYSIS OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Accounts

Receivable

Beginning

of Year

Gross

Fees

Contractual

Allowances

& Discounts

Bad Debts

and Other

Charges

Cash

Receipts

Accounts

Receivable

End of

Year

CLIENT FEES $  1,570,357 $ 4.806,240 $ (4,433,992) $ 367,288 $ (467,877) $ 1,842,016

MANAGED MEDICAID 305,365 17.998,203

MEDICAID 343,618 5,506,313

MEDICARE 207,385 1,950,286

OTHER INSURANCE 1,683,809 6,461,888

TOTAL $  4,110,534 $ 36,722,930

(5,377,020)

(2,390,139)

(660,118)

23,133 (12,644,316)

101,483 (3,044.140)

(368,566) (923,481)

305,365

517,135

205,506

(2.587,724) (1.494,448) (2,949,721) 1,113,804

$ (15,448,993) $ (1,371,110) $ (20,029,535) $ 3,983,826

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES. RECEIPTS AND RECEIVABLES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

BBH

Receivable

End

of Year

BBH

Revenues

Per

Audited

Financial

Statements

Receipts

for

Year

BBH

Receivable

End

of Year

CONTRACT YEAR, June 30, 2018 $  398,203 $ 3,044.739 $ (3,280,057) $ 162,885

Analysis of Receipts:
Date of Receipt/Deposit

07/01/17

07/03/17

07/14/17

07/21/18

09/21/17

09/22/17

10/02/17

10/24/17

12/05/17

01/19/18

02/09/18

02/22/18

03/01/18

04/16/18

05/02/18

06/22/18

06/27/18

Amount

$  141,124

270,690

885

126,628

140,631

244,666

37,500

225,791

325,682

202,370

885

404,102

15,013

885

588,031

477,582
77,592

$ 3,280,057

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foitdation, Inc.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL PU8UC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Multi. Odter

Total Total TotM Child/ 8de<ly Emerpency Vocational Non - Service ACT Oisis Community Supponive Mental Other

Adoi. Services Rarvkes .Sarvkes Flioibles Team Team Unit Residence Lnrino Health Non-BBH Prooartv

PROGRAM SERVICE FEES

Net Client Fees S  372,248 S S  372.248 S  36,294 S  (39,819) S  88,754 $  5.694 i  (51.349) S (200,346) S  7,090 S 403.874 $  8,930 S  8,316 S $  104,810 S

HMO's 1.289,148 1.289.149 133.461 9,811 217,846 379.305 169,381 31,458 347.887 •

Blue Cross/Blue Shield 2,025.586 2.025.586 289,525 60,762 308,726 471,924 436,645 35,437 422,367

Medicaid 15,737.357 15,737.357 5,047,590 305,999 480,917 348.168 264.162 4,982.291 2,129.977 1,214,909 391,939 521,888 3.019 46.498

Medicare 1.290.168 1,290,168 5,725 206.896 10.784 902 177.154 804,394 75.738 4,961 316 967 142 2.189

Other Insurance 559,429 559,429 22,124 (5.114) 60.417 10.612 111.172 123,330 3,352 234.235 18 (717)

19.704 19.704 351 (325) 7.773 1.853 1.520 101 8.321 110

Sut>-total 21.293.641 21.293.641 5.535.070 538.210 1.175.217 365.376 1.354.221 6.317.415 2.283.153 7 636 554 401.185 531.299 3.161 152.780

LOCAL/COUNTY GOVERNMENT

Oonations/ContriPutiorts 461.811 461.811 157.703 (5,000) 309,108

ON. tor Children, Youth S Families 3,540 3,540 3,540 - -

FEDERAL FUNDING

PATH 40,121 40.121 . 40.121 -

RENTAL INCOME 128.936 128,936 839 118.267 9.830 497.119

INTEREST INCOME 26,587 26,587 26,587

BBH

Bureau of Beftaviorial Health 1,632,036 1.632.036 3.152 440.884 450.000 675,000 63.000

Other BBH 1,204.125 1.204.125 1,204.125

OTHER REVENUES 5.884.646 5.884.646 1,755,890 66,830 604,390 151,784 24,326 1,169,648 621.062 357.000 32,710 274,052 375 826,379

Sud-total 9,381,802 9,381,802 1,762,582 66.830 1,085,395 151.784 182.029 1,164,648 1,071,062 2.236,964 32.710 392,319 63.375 1,171,904 497.119

TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES S 30,675,443 S $ 30,675,443 S 7.297,652 S 605,040 S 2.260,612 $ 517,160 $ 1.536,250 S 7,482,263 $ 3.354,215 % 4,873,518 S 433,895 S 923.618 S 66,536 $  1.324.664 $497,119

See Independent Auditor's Report
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TVw Mtrui Htasn Ctmtr o> GrMtar ManchMtf, Inc.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For tho Ymt Endod Jino 30. 2018

PERSONNEL COSTS

Solary and VAgo*

Employt* Bonofla
POyrolTWM

SutMOUl

19.701,960 S 2.092.973 8 17,609.987 8 3.0*2.376 8 198.128 8 1,413,045 8 363.902 8 1.033.031 8 4,855.912 8 2.148,827 8 Z932.744 8 356,054 8 585.606 8 43.689 8 635,673 8
4 158,511 471,068 3.687.443 726,667 42.989 222.250 82.643 92.029 1,039.367 509,708 573883 86.190 162.448 9,883 138.986
1.429.114 148.893 1.280.221 218.517 14.704 101.463 27 011 78.839 346 366 154.927 218862 26,156 42.543 3.167 50244 _

2.712.934 22.579.651 3,987.760 255.821 1,736.758 473.756 1.201.899 6 241.645 2.613.462 3.724.909 790697

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Clcnt EvMudana'SarMcas

AuUFmi

Ligal Fm*

COW Prol. FMMCensuSanu

STAFF DEVELOPMENT

STRAINING

JeumalMPueicatlons

In-Mrvic4 Training

CerriararKaMCoRvvntions

OUiar Slag Davalopmant

OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rant

Haaiing Coau

OinarUllUat

MaMananca 6 Rapaire

Ottiar Occupancy Costs

CONSUMABLE SUPPUES

Oflica

BuMlngfl tousanoM

Educstional^raMng

Food

Madieal

OUiar Coftsumatria Suppass

OapradatiervEqulpnisni

OapradstiorvBuidng

Equipmani MaMananca

Advartlsing

Printing

TaMpnona/Communlcatlon

Pestaga 8 Snipping
TRANSPORTATION

Stan

Clactts

INSLIRANCE

Malpractica 8 Bending

Vanidas

Comp PrepartyriJabiity

MEMBERSHIP OUES

INTEREST EXPENSE
OTHER EXPENDITURES

Total Expandlturas
AdmlnlstiatWn Aloe alien

TOTAL PROGRAM

EXPENSES

SLRPLUSIDEFICIT)

332.399

54.000

67.576

71.276

3.729

(1.053)

60.794

t04.913

8,407

7,273

227,805

478,646

14,762

251.887

61.602

446.054

73.759

77.871

437.267

256.665

167.609

37.088

56.236

43.769

342.767

42.632

215.175

6.386

56.017

9.392

141.090

37.787

277.433

56.173

5.125

6.278

13.357

19.867

23.702

8.407

8.920

21.130

107

92.130

1.902

2.212

2266

32

75.201

23,813

9,016

7.683

4.914

11.970

29.586

23.449

2.829

5.316

891

13.389

3.583

23.703

276226

48.875

61.298

57.919

3.294

(1.053)

40.907

81.211

7.273

218.865

457.516

14.655

159.757

59.700

443.842

71.493

77.839

362.066

234.852

158.593

29.205

51.322

31.799

313.181

19.163

212.346

6.386

50.701

8.501

127.701

34.204

253.730

(5.292) 638 1.052 39,178 165,088 2.342 66236 457 8.527

6.656 756 3.715 1,134 3,132 13.122 6.912 7.020 594 1.636 216 1.782

13.245 574 2.675 2077 6,380 19.552 8.272 5.306 428 1.322 164 1293

10.789 1214 4.528 1,456 4,060 13.324 7.461 6.933 609 1.883 270 5.372 32.079

1.506

22.617

5.126

40.545

131

1.975

448

(9)

(5.000)

260

3.507

594

440

7.215 514 1.978 429 1.424 13.662 4.039 7.712 279 604 304 2.747

(1.329) 13.038 3.168 15.467 7.713 16.766 9.972 16.416

7.273

(64) 6.367 24.190 8.664 (49) 38.854 17.915 71.021 43.607 3.342 4.838 156.139

18.172 13.003 26.500 18.088 9.403 93.710 37.587 159.169 1.600 66.390 8.142 5.754 204.656

40 74 126 825 299 8.0O5 160 5.062 49 IS 163.904

19.112 900 4.063 4.723 13.909 47.949 12.236 29.104 118 6.751 703 21.191

648 970 4.370 1.394 464 6.629 2.925 35.046 10 5.537 595 912

26.248 5.340 6.050 2.336 1.175 154.651 53.944 144246 627 2.969 33 46.223

764 16 15 172 70 259 304 6*279 16 4.680 1 897

54 5 23 7 20 29.455 44 45.763 4 11 1 2.452

58.739 5.558 26.068 9.018 22.463 95.041 55.235 52359 5.311 14.456 1.757 16.021

43.285 7.404 13.541 6.526 13.264 49.929 33.256 40.762 4.394 14.896 i.m 6.444

5.520 5.550 8.304 7.411 3.136 36.642 14.623 43.970 26.268 6,820 147 196.025

4.392 329 1.599 6*7 1.804 7.680 3.390 5681 256 1.844 97 1.286

5.999 594 2.526 771 3.132 8.923 4.700 5.007 404 1.249 147 17.870 164

6.005 303 1.963 539 4.514 7.706 2.349 4.555 156 462 122 3.105

44.961 7273 21.653 13.537 21.461 72.957 36.814 56.939 7.592 19.606 3.216 6.750

2.733 219 2.326 329 1.040 3.892 2.002 5.102 172 532 63 773

35.604 651 12.788 15.371 504 39.263 62.868 10.065 4.513 3.983 180 6.336

7 27 20 60 2504 3.768

6.960 784 3.854 1.176 3.249 13.813 7.170 7.282 616 1.904 224 1.649

646

9.707

2.200

12.590

197

2.963

672

4.761

545

8.163

1.655

13.070

2.283

34.285

7.921

54.952

1.202

18.060

4.094

1221

18.342

4.358

35.935

103

1.552

352

2.476

319

4.797

1.125

7.695

36

564

4.108

900

310

4.656

1.945

46.667

29.760.598 3.210.540 26.550.058 4.372.690 320.757 1.934.951 592.568 1.382.534 7.284.290 3.270,457 4,669.604 500.774 1,051,652 90,365 1.059.196 1.001,958

(3.210.540) 3.210.540 538.863 40.146 224.935 81,097 178.424 893.464 369,697 578,883 66.469 129,677 12440 76.245

29.760.596 29.760.598 4.911.753 360.903 2.159.666 673,665 1,560.958 6.177.754 3.860,354 5,266.467 567.243 1.191,329 102,625 1.135.441 1,001.956

5  914.845 5 •  i 914.845 5 2.365.899 1 i44.lS? 5  100.726 % (156,505) 8 (24.708) % (661*41) i (306.139) S (394,969) 5 (lU.i46) t iii'.'ii) i (36.269) t 189.243 5 (504.639)

Saa Ineapandant Audter'i RaperL
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William T. Rider

Objective To provide effective leadership in community mental healthcare

Experience The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

401CypressSt Manchester. NH 03103 (603)668-4111

•  3/2015 to Present; President, Chief Executive Officer

•  3/2000 to 3/2015: Executive VP. Chief Operating Officer

•  1/1995 to 2/2000: Director, Community Support Program

•  7/1987 to 12/1994: Assistant Director Community Support Program

•  6/1985 to 6/1987: Clinical Case Manager

Carroll County Mental Health

25 West Main St. Conway NH 03818

•  4/78 to 5/85: Clinical Case Manager

New Hampshire Hospital

24 Clinton St

Concord NH 03301

•  10/76 to 4/78: Mental Health Counselor

Education 2001 to 2002 Franklin Pierce College Concord, NH

•  12 Graduate Credits

1972 to 1976 Canisius College Buffalo, NY

•  BA Psychology 1976

Community

Activity

Granite Pathways: Chair, Board of Directors

Postpartum Support Intemationai-NH, Founders Board

NAMI of NH Member since 1985

■ 2017 NH Business Excellence Award in the Large Non Profit Category

•  1992 NAMI Professional of the Year Award



PATRICIA CARTY, MS, CCBT

Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer

DESCRIPTION

Works collaboratively with members of Senior Leadership Team and is an active participant in
planning and development. Attends meetings with the Board of Directors and contributes to
Board effort in governing The Center. Advises the President/CEO of opportunities and trends
within the environment that The Center operates, as well as analyzing the strengths and
weaknesses of Center programs and personnel. Understands and incorporates The Center's
mission, vision and Guiding Values and Principles in all areas of performance. Positively
represents The Center y to all constituent groups; including regulatory agencies, media, general
public, staff, consumers and families. May be requested to take part in consultations, education
activities, speakers bureau, presentations, supervision of employees toward licensure, and will be
expected to take part in Quality Improvements activities.

EDUCATION

MS Springfield College, Manchester
Communily/Psychology 1994

I3A University of Vermont
Psychology 1985

EXPERIENCE

The Menial Health Center of Greater Manchester Manchester, NH

July 2015 to present Exeeutive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer
2000 to July 2015 Director of Community Support Services
1996 - 2000 Assistant Director of Community Support Services
1990- 1996 Assistant Coordinator, Restorative Partial Hospital
1987 - 1990 Counselor, Restorative Partial Hospital
1986 - 1987 Residential Specialist

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS, MEMBERSHIPS, LICENSES AND
CERTIFICATIONS

•  Member - Psychopharmacology Research Group, Department of Psychiatry, Dartmouth Medical
School - 2003 to present

•  1998 Recipient of the Mental Illness Administrator of the Year Award by the National Alliance
for the Mentally 111

•  1998 American Psychiatric Association Gold Award participant winner accepting on behalf of the
entire DBT treatment program

•  American Mental Health Counselor's Association (#999020788)

•  Certified Cognitive Behavioral Therapist (# 12421)
•  National Association of Cognitive Behavioral Therapists

Y:\Admin Ex Sec\Mot>ila Crttit Servkai RFP 2016\Technical Propos«l\StaR ind RetumetVPaUida Carty Raaume.Oocx



PATRICIA CARTY, MS, CCBT

Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer

PUBLICATIONS

The Trauma Recovery Group: A Cognitive-Behavioral Program for Posl-Traumalic Stress Disorder in
Persons with Severe Mental Illness. Community Mental Health Journal. Vol. 43, No. 3, June
2007.

Co-authored Chapter 25 for text entitled Improving Mental Mealth Care: Commitment to Quality. Kdited
by Scdercr & Dickey, 2001.

Psychometric Evaluation of Trauma and Post-traumatic Stress Disorder Assessment in Persons with Severe
Mental Illness. Psychology Assessment. 2001. Vol. 13, No. I, I lO-l 17.

HIV Risk Factors Among People with Severe Mental Illness in Urban and Rural Areas. Psychiatric
Services. April 1999.

Trauma and Post-traumatic Stress Disorder in Severe Mental Illness. Journal of Consulting and Clinical
Psychology. 1998. Vol. 49, No. 10, 1338-1340.

Integrating Dialectical Behavior Therapy into a Community Mental Mealth Program. Psychiatric Services.
October 1998. Vol. 49, No. 10, 1338-1340.

YiVMmin Ex Sec\Mobil0 Crisis Sorricas RFP 20t6\Technical Proposal\StaH and ResumestPatricia Cany Resuma.docx



PAULJ. MICHAUD

MSB, as

Seasoned professional with 30 years of financial management, reporting, and leadership
experience, inclusive of general ledger oversight & reconciliations, month-end close, payroll,
A/P, A/R, budgeting / forecasting, variance analysis, product costing, revenue cycle
management, revenue enhancement, treasury I cash-flow forecasting, environmental &
operational analysis, staff supervision, H/R, workers comp. and insurance / risk administration,
regulatory and statutory reporting, external audits, strategic planning, policy development,
grants I funding management, technology implementation, EMR, compliance, and security.

LEADERSIP POSITIONS

Chief Financial Officer The Mental Health Center

Of Greater Manchester (NH) 201 1 to present

Controller Associated Home Care, Inc. Beverly, MA 2009 to 201 1

Chief Financial Officer Seacoast VNA, North Hampton, NH 1998 to 2009

IVIanagcr. Public Accounting Berry, Dunn, McNeil & Parker, CPA 1996 to 1998

Director, Budget & Cost / Controller BCBS of Maine, So. Portland, ME 1993 to 1996

Key Accountabilities: Oversight of all accounting, financial reporting, transaction processing, budgets /
forecasts, A/R, A/P, G/L, payroll, l/T, product costing, profitability analysis, and vendor contracting.
Regular collaboration with Senior Management Team, Finance Committees, Board of Directors, external
auditors, and federal / state regulators. Other responsibilities include: revenue cycle & cash flow
management, analysis and resolution of forecast variances, management of billing, A/R and collections,
banking, investor, lender relationships, new business development, staff recruitment, supervision, training,
benefits / retirement plans administration , cost accounting, operational analyses, systems integration,
development and maintenance of accounting and management information systems. Duties also include
assessing risk exposure & insurance coverage, M & A evaluations and due diligence, grant applications,
and preparation of corporate income tax schedules and support ( Forms 990 and 1 120 )

Significant Accomplishments - Post-Acute Heaithcarefaciiities:
Key member of EMR implementation team (billing, A/R, Accounting, registration functions)
Financial oversight during period of 100% revenue growth
Financial oversight during period of national Top 500 Agency Status
Financial oversight during period of 300% reduction in Days in A/R
One-year oversight - due diligence process - Merger with $50 million entity

Audit / Consulting Manager

Berry, Dunn, McNeil & Parker, CPA's & Management Consultants 1996 to 1998
Provided consultation and advisory services to hospitals , nursing homes, ALF's, and other healthcare
facilities (acute & post-acute) in areas of reimbursement, financial planning and reporting and systems
evaluations and integration. Coordinated and supervised audit engagements, regulatory report
preparation, feasibility studies, due diligence, financial forecasts and projections, and operational and
compliance reviews. Assisted clients with regulatory licensing and certifications.
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Budget Director, Finance Division, Budget & Cost Department

Blue Cross & Blue Shield of Maine So. Portland, ME 1993 through 1996
Directed corporate administrative budgeting and forecasting process for Maine's largest managed care
organization. Determined, distributed, analyzed, and forecast annual operating expenses in excess of $70
million. Oversight responsibilities of administrative expense reimbursement for all federal and state
contracts. Supervised professional and administrative staff. A/P. Payroll, G/L, financial & budget
variance reporting & analysis. Interim appointment as VP of Finance.

Significant Accomplishments:
Reorganized corporate budgeting and costing process, converting to electronic format while enhancing

routine communications with department heads and improving variance reporting..
Restructured payroll and A/P functions resulting in operational and economic efficiencies.
Collaborated with senior management in major corporate reorganization to streamline operations and

reduce administrative costs. Reduced administrative budget in excess of 25%.
Appointed to corporate job evaluation and compensation committee

Audit Manager, Medicare Fiscal Intermediary

Blue Cross & Blue Shield of Maine So. Portland, ME 1985 through 1993

Oversight responsibilities for Medicare cost report audit and reimbursement functions for hospital
complexes, home health care agencies, skilled nursing facilities, and other healthcare providers.
Interpreted and applied federal program laws, regulations and cost reporting instructions. Interacted with
provider officers and external consultants, CPA's and federal program officials. Staff supervision.

A ccomplisliments:
Planned, organized and implemented New England Regional Home Health Agency audit department in

1986, inclusive of development of audit programs and policies, fraud and abuse detection programs,
staff recruitment and training, and all related administrative and management functions.

Administered annual audit and provider service functions resulting in HCFA recognition of Blue Cross &
Blue Shield of Maine as one of the leading and most cost elTicient audit intermediaries in the entire
country based upon federal performance and quality standards. (1989 through 1995)

Staff Auditor - Public Accounting
Planned and conducted audit examinations and prepared financial statements and tax returns for clients
within the retail, financial services, healthcare and manufacturing industries.

Arthur Young & Company, Portland, Maine 1982 through 1983

EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

Husson College, Bangor, Maine

Masters of Science in Business Administration (MSB - Accounting Concentration) 1990
Husson College, Bangor, Maine

Bachelor of Science in Accounting (BSA) 1980

TECHNICAL PROFICIENCIES

Microsoft Office Products - Excel, Word, Powerpoint, database management tools
Various accounting & patient billing programs (Quantum, myAvatar, QuickBooks, MAS 90. MISVS, HAS,

CERNER )



CURRICULUM VITAE

MICHAEL D McNAMARA, DO, FACN
2 Wall Streetj Suite 300

Manchester NH 03101

PROFESSIONAL LICENSllRE. ANT) CERTIFICATION

NH Medical License- #16646

Board Certification in Psychiatry - Diplomat of the American College of
Osteopathic Neurologists and Psychiatrists 1997, Recertified 2007 & 2016
Certificate - 0432

DBA Certificate -FM4408729

XM4408729

EDUCATION

College: St. Michael's College, Winooski, Vermont, B.A., 1981

Medical School: University of New England College of Osteopathic Medicine,
Biddeford, Maine, D.O., 1988

Internship: Michigan Health Center, Detroit, Michigan, 1989

Psychiatric Residency: Adult Mental Health Hospital, Woodward Avenue, Detroit,
Michigan, July 1989-Junel992

EDUCATIONAL CONFERENCES

Certified by the American Osteopathic Association for completion of at least 150 CME
Credit hours for the following three-year cycles: 1992-1994,1995-1997, 1998-2000,
2001-2004, 2005-2007, 2007-2010.2011-2013,

. Curriculum Vitac Page 1
Michael Daniel McNamara, DO.



PROFESSIONAL IVrEMBERSHTPS

American Osteopathic Association

American College of Osteopathic Neurologists and Psychiatrists
-Elected as Fellow 2009

New Hampshire Osteopathic Association

American Psychiatric Association

American Osteopathic Academy of Addiction Medicine
POSITIONS

Medical Director Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester NH- (Present- 2017)
Psychiatrist for Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester NH 2014-present (2017)

full member, Medical staff -Catholic Medical Center-, Manchester NH 2014—present
(2017)

Full member, Medical staff-Elliot Hospital, Manchester NH- 2014-present (2017)

Chief of Psychiatry, North Country Hospital, Newport, Vermont 1992- (2008)

Medical Director for the mental health outpatient clinic operated by North Country
Hospital. Northern Vermont Counseling and Psychiatric Services. 1992-(2013)

Medical provider for Suboxone outpatient clinic at North Country Hospital
(2007-2013)

Clinical Assistant Professor, Dept of Family Medicine, UVM College of
Medicine(2005-2012)

Past- President Vermont State Association of Osteopathic Physicians & Surgeons
(VSAOPS) 2003-2005

President, North Country Hospital Medical Staff (2006-7)

Trustee member, North Country Hospital Board of Trustees (2006 & 2007)

Board Member- American Osteopathic Board of Neurology & Psychiatry
2009- (June 2015)

Co-Chair American College Board of Neurology & Psychiatry-2014- June 2015

Curriculum Vitae Page 2
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Co-Chair American College Board of Neurology & Psychiatry-2014- June 2015

Board Examiner for American College Board of Neurology & Psychiatry,
Part II Oral Psychiatric Exams, Cherry Hill NJ, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009,
2010,2011,2012,2013.2014,2015,2016

Program Chair (VSAOPS) for annual Vermont State CME conference at Stowe, Vermont
2002 & 2003

Board Officer VSAOPS 1998-2005

Member of Medical Staff, North Country Hospital Medical Staff 1992- (2013)

Officer Medical staff executive committee North Country Hospital 2002-2007

Chairman of the Ethics Committee at North Country Hospital 1993-1996

Member of the North Country Hospital Ethics Committee 1992- (2013)

Member of Pharmaceutical, Therapeutic and Treatment Medical Staff Committee at
North Country Hospital, 1992- 2008

Psychiatric Consultant to Northeast Kingdom Community Action Alcohol and Drug
Rehabilitation Program, 1995-1997

Vermont Member of the House Delegates of the American Osteopathic Association
Chicago, Illinois July 2003,2004, 2005,2006, 2007, 2008, 2009,2010,2011,2012,2013

CLINICAL fNTERSTS

Psychopharmacology, Mood/ Anxiety Disorders, Consult Liaison Psychiatry,
Geriatric Psychiatry, Addiction Medicine

REFERENCES on request.

Curriculum Vitae Page 3
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

Name of Program: PATH Amendment To Mobile Crisis Support Team for Opioid Use Disorders
BUDGET PERIOD: SPY: 2020

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

WILLIAM RIDER PRESIDENT/CEO $ 160,050 0.02 % $320.10

PATRICIA CARTY EXECUTIVE VP/COO $ 1 14,446 0.03% $ 343.33

PAUL MICHAUD VP of FINANCE/CFO $ 127,556 0.01% $ 127.55

MICHAEL

McNAMARA

VP/CHIEF MEDICAL

OFFICER

$ 187,416 0.01% $ 187.41



Jeffrey A. Meyen
Commissioner

. Kitji S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9544 1-800-052-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-000*735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 22. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health to enter into an agreement with The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester. Inc.,
401 Cypress Street. Manchester, NH 03103, Vendor #177184 B-001, to provide mobile crisis
services and supports to individuals who are in crisis related to their opioid use or post opioid
overdose, in an amount not to exceed $1,131,240 effective upon date of Governor and
Executive Council approval, through September 29, 2020. 100% Federal Funds. ■

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019, and are
anticipated to be available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if
needed and justi^ed.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS
DEPT OF, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL
SCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040' $565,520

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $565,720

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $-0-

Total $1,131,240



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION
V. ' ■ —

The purpose of this request is to ensure mobile crisis services and supports are
available to Individuals with opioid use disorders or post-opioid overdose in New Hampshire,
regardless of age, including those individuals with co-occurring mental health issues.

Approximately 8,500 individuals will be served from the effective date of this contract
through June 30, 2020.

These services are part of the State's funding from the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Sen/Ices Administration (SAMHSA) under the State Opioid Response (SOR) grant. The
State is using SOR funds to make critical Investments in the substance use disorder system to
reduce unmet treatment needs, reduce opioid overdose fatalities, and increase access to
Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) over the next two (2) years.

Mobile crisis services are part of the Department's overall strategy to respond to
substance abuse issues that negatively impact New Hampshire citizens, families and
communities. The Department's goal is to create a mobile crisis network in regions that
demonstrate the highest need for mobile services by increasing capacity through the
development and support of Opioid Use Disorder Mobile' Crisis Response Teams in the
Doorway regions.

The vendor will leverage its existing role in providing substance use services by
expanding mobile crisis services In the Greater Manchester area. Unique to these services is
a robust level of client-specific data that will be available, and which will be collected in
coordination with the regional Doorways that were approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on October 31, 2018 (Item 17A).

The SOR grant requires all individuals served receive a comprehensive assessment at
several time Inten/als, specifically at Intake, at three (3) months, at six (6) months and upon
discharge. The vendor must coordinate all Individual data and services with the individual's
Doorway to ensure that each individual served has the comprehensive assessment
completed. The Doorways are responsible for gathering data on client-related outcomes
including, but not limited to, recovery status, criminal justice involvement, employment and
housing needs at the time intervals listed above. This data will enable the Department to
measure short and long-term outcomes associated with SOR-funded initiatives and to
determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.
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The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester. Inc.

•  Ensure that one hundred percent (100%) of individuals served, who enter care
directly through the vendor and consent to information sharing with the
Doonvays', receive a Doorways referral for ongoing care coordination and
Government Performance and Results Modernization Act (GPRA) data
collection.

• Maintain a greater than ninety percent (> 90%) Opioid Use Disorder Mobile
Crisis Response Team (OUD MCRT) hospital diversion rate.

• Assess one hundred percent (100%) of individuals contacted who present with
suicidal ideation/behaviors.

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. was selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted, on The Department
of Health and Human Services' website from September 21, 2018 through October 18. 2018.
The Department received three (3) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a
team of individuals with program-specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the proposals. The Summary Score Sheet is
attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the
Department has the option to extend contract services for up to two (2) additional year(s),
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties
and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this , request, individuals in
need of mobile crisis services in crisis or immediately post-opioid overdose may not have
access to services and/or have increased chances of a fatal overdose.

Area served: Greater Manchester area.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health

Services Administration, State Opioid Response Grant, CFDA #93.788, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) TI081685.
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In the event that the Federal' Funds become no longer available, General Funds, will not
be requested to support this program.

spectfully submitted,

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht Departmenl of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join eomnuinities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

MOBILE CRISIS SERVICES AND

SUPPORTS FOR
RFP Name

RFP-2019'8OAS-09-MOBIL

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Abby Shocktey.Snr PoUcy Analyst
Substance Use Services. OBH

Bidder Name

Hart>or Homes, Inc

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual.

Points

Jamie Powers. Clinical & Recovery
Srvcs Admin II. BDAS

360 288

Elizabeth F^e^er-Lukaitis, Acute
Care Srvcs Coordinatof, BMHS

2
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. 360 265

Laurie Heath, Business Admin III,
DBHmOAS Finance

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester 360 299
Shawn Blattey, PS IV, Youth

■ Treatment Coordinator. BCBH



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-600-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Deals Goulet

Commissioner

May 31.2019

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents forma) notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract agreement with The Mental Health Center of
Greater Manchester. Inc., Manchester, NH, as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2019-052.

DHHS requests to enter into a contract with The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
to provide mobile .crisis services and supports to individuals who are in crisis related to their opioid
use or post opioid overdose.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed $1,131,240 effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval, through September 29,2020.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services* submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

cerely,

! fl1

Denis Goulet

DG/ik/ck

DoIT #2019-052

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"innovadve Technologies Todayfor New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: MOBILE CRISIS SERVICES AND SUPPORTS FOR OPIOID USE DISORDER mFP-2Q19-BDAS^.MOBIL-03^

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive'Council for approval. Any information (hat is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT ^
. The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NK Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

401 Cypress Street
Manchester, NH 03103

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-206-8552 .

i.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920510-

70AO0O0O-1O2-50O731

1.7 Completion Date

September 29,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$1,131,240

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1. 11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

VJilliam'Rjder.Tresidcnt /CED
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of ~/7ff , County of ""

On ^ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be (he person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that ̂ e executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block K12.

1.13.1 Signarure'.df Nc^ary Public or Justice of the Peac

iSeaJL_4_
1.13.2 Name iohcl Tttie pf Notary or Justice of the Peace

JOANNE C. DUCLOS, Notary Public
My Commfsalon Expfroa August 6,20^

.14 State Agency Signature

Date:

1.15 _Namc and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by (he N.H. Department of Administration, Division of PersonneTf^oppy/cob/e^

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substwce and Execution) Of applicable)

On:

1.18 Approval by theG^cmdr and Executive Council 0/applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale ofNew Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I. I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which Is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
here,under, shall become efTeciive on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and In the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Ser^ces performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the Bvailability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
(0 the Account Identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICETPRICE LIMITATlbN/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identined and more particularly described in
EXHIBrr B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance.hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the (Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
(hose liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, ahd notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

f

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In conneciloh with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive Information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contraaor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State ofNew Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Slate or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
a^enaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide ell
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The'Conlractor
warrants (hat all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, f>rm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, wy person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be ftnal for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of (he following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or alt, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event ofDefault
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event ofDefault; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFlDENTlALltV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used In this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtuned during the
performance of, or acquired or develop^ by reason of, this
AgrMmenl, including, but not limited lb; all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with ftinds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior vmtten approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termiriation. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described' In the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contracior is In all

-  respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee' of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofticers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
inierest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. Noneofthe Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.,

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its.officers and
employees, ftom and against any and all losses suffered by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted again^ the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State.'This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain arid maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability Insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI ,(X)0,OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparegraph 9.2 herein. In an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurera licensed in the State of New
Hampshire. .
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
Identined in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceniric8ie(s)
of insurance for all insiuance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewals) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificateCs) of
Insurance shall contain a clause requiring (he insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

i S. 1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
(" Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain,' and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be anached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACU. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGR£EMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD Parties. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confbr any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference puiposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement .will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior -
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the'addrcsses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or dischaiged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
MOBILE CRISIS SERVICES AND SUPPORTS FOR OPIOID USE DISORDER

ExhIbH A -

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English, proficiency to ensure
. meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the

contract effective date.

1.2. The.Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by-the New

Hampshire Ceneral Court or federal or statis court orders may have an Impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. ' Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the coritrary. no services
shall continue after June 30. 2019. and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments, for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and . until an
appropriation for these services, hais been received from the state legislature, and
funds encumbered for the SFY. 2020-2021 and SFY 2022-2023 blennia.

1.4. For the purposes of this contract, the Contractor shall bie Identified as a sub

recipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2. Scope of Work
2.1. The Contractor shall provide mobile crisis services and supports to individuals in

the Greater Manchester, New Hampshire, area who are In crisis related to their
opiold use or post opiold overdose.

,  2..2. The Cdntrartor shall ensure that the core mbblle'crisis services'provided include:

2.2.1. Maintaining a central intemal phone triage system for crisis calls to be
•received or referred through:

2.2.1.1. Emergency medical senrlces;

2.2.1.2. Law enforcement; and

2.2.1.3. Doorways for Opiold Use Disorder Services;.

2.2:2. Providing an CUD Mobile Crisis Response Tearn (CUD MCRT) .with
sufficient clinical support and oversight which shalj include at a minimum:

2.2.2.1. Staffing to screen incoming referrals;

2.2.2.2. At least one (1.) Peer Recovery. Coach or Certified Recovery
Support. Wor1(er;

The Mental Health Center of Greater ^
Manch^ter, Inc. • Exhibti A Contractor IhlUals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
MOBILE CRISIS SERVICES AND SUPPORTS FOR OPIOID USE DISORDER

Exhibit A

• i.i.'i.i. 1 ne aDuiiy lo connect to an on-caii clinician capable o\ providing"

crisis intervention counseling through the Individual's Doorway
or through the selected vendor(s) directly; and

2.2.2.4. Developing a screening protocol for evaluating clinical and/or
other safety concerns which Include, but are hot limited to:

2.2.2.4.1. Directing and dispatching of .the OUD MCRT;

2.2.2.4.2. Consulting with on-call and supervisory staff;

2.2.2.4.3. Documenting arid/pr reporting of any.
recbhimendation not to dispatch the mobile team;

2.2.2.4.4. Meeting face-to-face with individuals in their

environment to de-escalate.crises without removing
the Individual from their home and/or community
.program;

2.2.2.4.5.

2.2.2.4.6.

Providing sufficient staff capacity to meet the needs
of the Individuals served by the ODD MCRT;

2.2.2.4.0.

Coordinating transportation for individuals from the
site of the crisis to their apartment, home, or other
residential setting after stabilization has occurred;

2..2.'2.4.7. Working and coordinating with law enforcement
persohnei wheriYesponding.to an individual in an
OUD crisis with law. enforcement involvement,

Including Immediately-post-overdose;

Coordinating the Individual's connection v^h the

individual's nearest Doorway to assess individual's
needs ..arid identify servjces and supports
necessary to rneet the individual's needs; ,

2.2.2.4.9. Conducting regular education and outreach
activities with local emergency services, law
enforcement and pporway staff to promote
appropriate referrals to and utilization of, crisis toarn
resources; ' ' .,

2.2.2.4.10. Developing a plan for formal agreements or
memoranda of understanding, with regional
stakeholders including the Doorway, iocal .law
enforcement, and emergency medical personnel to

The Menial Health Center of Greater
Manchester, Inc.
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
MOBILE CRISIS SERVICES AND SUPPORTS FOR OPIOID USE DISORDER

Exhibit A

■  ensure enecuve coorainaiion wiin ana oeiivery or'

mobile crisis services; and

2.2.2.4.11. Coliecting and reporting data on service delivery,
utilization and perforrnance as directed by the
Department. '

2.3. The Contractor shall, within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date, provide
a designated central inteirial phone number, that rh'ust be available twenty-four
(24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, and shall t>e answered by a Master's
level clinician, to accept referrals for the OUD MORI, froni the following parties:

2.3.1. Doorways;

2.3.2. Law enforcement; and

2.3.3. Ernergency medical personnel.

2.4. The Contractor shall use protocols during the initial screening of incoming referrals
for ODD MCRT services which shalMnclude, but not be limited to:

2.4.1. Provide 24/7 immediate and direct phone triage services to assess an
individual's nieeds;

2.4.2. Provide crisis services within one (1) hour of receiving the call to individuals
face-to-face;

2.4.3. Foliow-up calls within twenty-four (24) hours;

2.4.4. . Follow-up home visits within twenty-four (24) hours;

2.4.5. Meeting at a mutually agreed upon home or community environment; and

2.4.6. Coordination with emergency medical services, law enforcement, and the
indiyidual's. Doorway.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide a risk assessment tool to assess the safety of the.
OUD MCRT mernber(s) being dispatched to assist the' individual after attempting
to gather indiyiduars infprm^on which shall include, but not be lirnlted to:

2.5.1.' Name;

2.5.2. Date of birth;

2.5.3. Telephone number;

,2.5.4. Current location; .

2.5.5. Home address;

2.5.6. Psychiatric/co-occurring history;

hjL
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Exhibit A

L;urrenisiiuaTion/cnieT complaint; '

2.5.8. History of suicidality, self-harm/vlolencd towards others;

2.5.9. Current suicidality/self-harnVviolence towards others;

2.5.10. Current and history of substance use, currently intoxicated;

2.5.11. Amount of substance used;

2.5.12. Current symptoms;

2.5.13. Environmental safety, including are guns, drugs, others who are violent,
animals present;

«  ■ .

2!5.14. Health concerns;

2.5.15. History of/current legal issues;

2.5.16. Cuirent health care/mental health providers; and

.2.5.17. Current medications. .

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure the OUD MCRT completes an Outreach Risk
Assessment if action is determined to be required upon iiiitial phone-contact,

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure coverage is provided during multiple concurrent crises
referrals by utilizing:

•2.7.1. Skilled Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug.Counselors/Licensed Alcohol
and Drug Counselors (MLADC/LADC), including full-time and per diem
staff, scheduled 24/7;

2.7.2. Experienced Peer Recovery Coaches/Certified Recovery Support Workers
(CRSWs) scheduled per diem 24/7;

2.7.3. A 24/7 schedule of MLADCs/LADCs and CRSWs who function as "back

ups" for the regularly scheduled clinicians;

2.7.4. Tertiary "back-up" staff who are skilled arid versed iri DUD MCRT work;
and

2.7.5. Additional support 24/7 from ah on-call psychiatrist, an Advanced Practice
Registered Nurse (APRN), OUD MCRT supervisory staff and the
Administratof-on-call;

2.8. The Contractor's staff shall provide the following services and supports during a
crisis response which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.8.1. Phone triage:

The Mental Health Center of Greater

Manchester, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor initials
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Exhibit A

~  Khorie tnage snail De completed Dy a Masters levei clinician,
yvhich shall include, but not be limited to:

2.8.1.1.1. Completing the initial risk assessment;

2.8.1.1.2. Making a determination as to what level of service
will be provided to the caller;

2.8.1.1.3. Utilizing the telephone triage for information and

referral to the comrriunity; and

2.8.1.1.4. Assisting the caller by providing information to
make informed decisions about accessing services '

related to their behavioral health crisis.

2.8.2. • Phone coaching:

2.8.2.1. Phone coachmg shall be completcki by a Master's level
clinician, and/or "Peer Recovery, Coach/Certified Recpvery
Support Worker, which shall include. But not be limited to:;

2.6.2.1.1. Giving equal attention to the individual's

'  Immediately available and potentially available

assets;

2.6.2.1.2. Providing strengths based approach to help affirm

the individual's roje as ah active partner |n the

resolution of the crisis by marshalling his or her

capabilities.

2.8.3. . Peer recovery coaching/certified recovery support:

2.8.3.1. Peer recovery coaching/certified recovery support, shall be

provided by. Peer Recovery Coaches and/of Certified Recovery
Support Workers, in partnership with all members of the OUD
MCRT In an effort to maximize the person's recovery capital

index and shall include, but not be limited to:

2.8.3.1.1. Offering opportunities for the Individual to connect
- with a supportive circle of people who have-shared

experiences;

2.8.3.1.2. Provide supportive counseling;

2,8.3.1.3: Identify potential community based resources;.and

. 2.8.3,1.4. Problem solving regarding life stressois;

2.8.4. Lethality/level of care assessment:

\j^
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Letnaiity/ievei or care assessment snaii oe completed by a

Master's level cJiiiiciari which shall Ihdude, but riot be limited to:

2.8.4.1.1., A comprehensiye facerto-face assessment

including a direct inten/iewof the individual in crisis;

2.8.4.1.2. A crisis assessment, which shall include, but not be

limited to;

^  2.6.4.1.3. Presenting problems and a narrative of-.how and

why the^Mvidual.is presenting-at this time;

2.8.4.1.4. Irnmediate safety concerns from ihe point of view of
the individual in crisis, including suicidal ideation;

.2.8.4.1.5. Referring parties arid other collateral sources when

relevant;

•2.8.4.1.6. Crisls.precipitants; .-

2.8.4.1.7. Internal and external supports;.

2.8.4.1.8. History of relevant past sytTiptoms;

2.8.4.1.9. Treatments;

2.8.4.1.10. Medical and substance co-morbidities;

2.8.4.1.11. Functional status;

2.8.4.1.12. Current rnental status exam with sehal assessment

over time and in response to immediate treatment

■  • Interventions;

2.8.4.1.13. Creation of a disposition/crisis/recovery plan;

2.8.4.2. Use skills, to ameliorate discomfort and affirm the individual's

crisis:

2.8.4.3. Identify and activate the individual's own skills to manage the
crisis;

2.8.5. Crisis stabilization:

2.8.5.1. Crisis stabilization shall be provided by a Master's level clinician
which shall Include, but not be limited to: .

2.8.5.1.1. Ongoing lethality assessment;

2.8.5.1.2. Case management/connection to community
based sen/ices;

The Mental Health Center of Greater i
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■  I nerapeutic servjces;

2.8.5.1.4. Coordination with the Doorway; and

2.8.5.1.5. Possible admission to a Cnsis Stabliizatioh bed. to
provide brief and continuous psychiatric and/or
substance misuse intervention in a corbmunity-
based environment structured both to maximize

respite arid support and to-mlnimize the need for
inpatlent hospitalization.

2.8.5.1.6. Crisis stabilization beds shall be rnonltored by a
Master's Lever Clinician and a Peer Recovery
Coach/Certified Recovery Support Worker In
consultation with an on-cati psychiatrist/APRN.

2i8.5.2. Interventions, which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.8.5.2.1. Ongoing safety assessment;

2.8.5.2.2. Supervision; ■

2.8.5.2.3. Serial evaluation of mental status;

2.6.5.2.4. Focus on coping strengths;

2.6.5.2.5. Developing a recovery plan;

2.8.'5.2;6. • Medication evaluation';

2.8.5.2.7. Supportive therapy;

2.8.5.2.8.' -Referrals for psychiatric/co-occurring, social

. service, substance, medical aftercare; and

2.8.5.2.9. Coordination with the Doorway.

2.8.6. Emergency psychopharmacology:

2.8.6.1. Emergency psychophannacology shall be provided by a full

time Nurse Practitioner, Monday through Friday, on the first shih
of the day, and there shall be an on-call psychiatrist available
after hours for those individuals who are:

2.8.6.1.1. Experiencing an acute crisis and require initiation of

.  . medications; and

2.6.6.1.2. More established Individuals who have either been

non-adherent to medications or where medications

•have not been effective.

uuais
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kJ.tJ.A. uase management: • • - • •—

2.8.7.1. Case management services shall be expedited through referral
and linkage to community-based services through the
Contractor's partnering with multiple organizations in a
behavioraljy Integrated manner.

2.8.8. Law enforcement/emergency medical/Do.orway coordination:

■2.8;8i1. Law enforcement/emergency medical/Doorway- coordination
shall be provided 24/7 through coordination with area police and

■  fire, emergency medical personnel, and the Doorway to ensure
that individuals In need find the path to recoveiy; and

2.8.8.2. Coordination may also include the use of the Contractor's
Intensive Transition Team that screens individuals per the

. determinants of health and connects them to commuriity-based
services, which ensure smooth care transitions.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide de-escalation.Interventions within one (1) hour of
receiving a request. De-escalation interventions shall Include, but not be limited
to:

2.9.1. Operating the DUD MCRT crisis response line 24/7:

2.9.1.1. Respond to crises face-to-face in the community within one (1)
hour, beginning with the initial telephone triage response by the
Master's Level Clinician.

2.9.2. • Individual-centered recovery v*^ich shall include, but not be limited to:

■  2.9.2.1. Intent,- empathetic and careful listening while validating,
displaying interest and hope to assist the intensity ;of the
moment:

2.9.2.2. For individuals known to the Contractor, provide Immediate
access to the individuals osvn crisis care plan and strengths
along with their personal goals via their Service Plan;

2.9.2.3. For individuals new to the Contractor, provide fpllow-up services
.which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.2.3.1. Crisis stabilization;

2.9.2.3.2. Medication management; and

2.9.2.3.3. Benefits assistance.

2.9.3. Peersupport:

The Menial H^lh Center of Greater ^
Manchester,. Inc. ExWWtA ■ Contractor InKlali • [I
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ine tjoniractor snaii proviae peer -suppon -tnrougn Heer

Recovery Coaches/Certified Recovery Support Workers
including, but not limited to:

2.9.3.1.1. Promoting recovery;

2.9.3.1.2. Building upori skills; and

2.9.3.1.3. Offering support.

2.9.4. Evidence based practices (EBP) shall be provided by Master's Level
Clinicians who shall offer a wide range of responses to assist the individual
in managing the crisis effectively in their natural environment;

2.9.5. Substance use disorder (SUO) treatment:

2.9.5.1. .Substance use disorder treatment shall include but hot bo

■  limited to:'

2.9.5.1.1. Utilizirig Motivational Inten/iewihg at the time of the
crisis and dunng follow-up visits, when indicated;

2.9.5.1.2. Offering support;

2.9.5.1.3. Offering guidance; and

2.9.5.1.4. Offering transportation to persons wishing to attend

Alcoholics Anonymous (AA). Narcotics'Anonymous
(NA), and any other self-help groupis and 12,Step
groups.

2.9.6. Medication assisted treatment (MAT);

2.9.6.1. The Coritractor shall provide referrals to MAT Stabilization and
Maintenance Clinics in combination with the following services
which .shall include, but not be limited to: ,

2.9.6.1.1. Substance abuse counseling;'

2.9.6.1.2. Group and individual therapy;

2.9.6.1.3. Nursing and psychiatric/co-occurrir^ services; and

2.9.6.1.4. Linkage and coordination to local resources.

2.9.7. Trauma informed care:

2.9.7.1. The Contractor's clinicians will te trained in trauma iriformed

practice to beher be able to assess, understand and assist in
restructuring the emotional process of the individual

experiencing the crisis.

The Mental hMllh Center of Greater
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. Support systems:

2.9.8.1. The Contractors Master's Level Clinicians, Peer Recovery
Coaches/Cerlified Recovery Support Workers shall Identify arid
mobilize supports within .the Indivtduars natural envirpnmerit;

2.9.8.2. Immediate and direct referrals shall be made as needed, which
shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.8.2.1. Substance Dm Disorder services;

2.9.8.2.2; Medication Services;

2.9.8.2.3. Crisis bed/apartment referral;

2.9.8.2.4. Next day fdilow-up crisis stabilization appointments
: in collaboration ̂ th existing care providers shall be
available;

2.9.8.2.5: Transportation shall be offered to bring an
individual expeiiencing a ODD crisis to the most
supportive and appropriate setting; and

2.9.8.2.6.' Transportation shall also be arranged to return the
Individual to their natural environment after

receiving OUD MCRT services.

•  2.9.9. Intensive treatment team:

2.9.9.1. The Contractor shall provide the individual with access to their

intensive Transition Team which screens individuals per the
.  determinants of health, and.conriects them to corhmuhity-based

services, ensuririg smooth care .transitions, for up to forty-five
(45) days.

2.9.10. Suicide risk assessment: '

2.9.10.1. The Contractor's clinicians will screen individuals for suicide risk

using the Columbia-Suicide Severity Rating' Scale (C-SSRS);

2.9.10.2. Information shall be corhmunicated via the Doorway..

'2.10. The Contractor shall provide outreach andeducation to partnera within their region
including, but not limited to:

2.10.1. Working clo^ly with emergency rooms and related staff;

2.10.2. Identifying critical community stakeholders with assistance of the
Department and planning onjgoing meetings; and

The Mental HeaJth Center of Greater ^
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^  I raining agency start tn uuu MODiie L;nsis beryices mocei or.care.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop partner agreements with law enforcement,

eniergency medical personnel, schools, Including regional universities and

Doorways.by coordinating the OUD MCRT with existing Infrastructure, trainings
and weekly provider meetings.

2.12. . The Contractor shall engage with Individuals in their home environments to prevent

avoidable hospitalizatiohs or escalation of a crisis by providing mobilized services
which include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. Or)-going risk assessment:

2.12.2. Crisis.stabillzation;

2.12.3. Mobilization of natural supports;

2.12.4. Solution-focused-brief psychotherapy;

2.12.5. Crisis case management;

2.12.6. Supportive counselirig;

2.12.7. Distress tolerance strategies;

.2.12.8. Access to niedication services; and '

2.12.9.. Access to recovery t>ed$ when necessary.

2.13. ' The Contractor shall respond to individuals who are post-opioid overdose either
In the community or at the hospital by providlrig services which include, but are not

limited to:
• ^

2.13.1. On-site hospital referrals;

2.13.2. Overdose education which shall include, but hot be limited to:

2.13.2.1. How to prevent, recognize and respond to an dpiold overdose;

2.13.2^2. Promote self-bare and active nori-pharmacplogical -therapies
Including, but riot limited to:.

. 2.13.2.2.1. Enhancing whole health setf-care and- lifestyle
medication;

2.13.2.2.2. Providihg t^havioral, mindfulness, and cognitive
solution-focused interventions;

• 2.13.2.2.3. Offering alternative/bridge therapies;

2.13.2.2.4. Optimlzlng treatment of co-morbidities;

2.13.2.2.5. Providing assessmentand connection for MAT; and

Th'e Mental Health Center of Greater i /f /
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using coorainaieorteam-oasea approach. ■

2.13.3. Engagement with the Intensive Transition Team which shall Include, but
not be limited to;

2.13.3.1. .Identify and help connect recently discharged Individuals to
recovery services for iip to forty-five (45) days.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide mobile treatment and recovery support services
which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.14.1,. Crisis stabilization;

2.14.2. Lethality/level of care assessment;.

2.14.3. Emergency psychopharmacology;

2.14.4. Peer recovery coaching/certified recovery support.

2.14.5. Access to MAT;

2.14.6. Temporary bed access;

2.14.7. Case management; and

2.14.8. Urine drug testing.

2.15. The OUD MCRT shall have, at a mlnirnum, peer recovery coaches or certified
recovery support workers and a cdnriectiqn to the clinician{s) affiliatedi,with the

■ Doorways or directly through the vendor(s);

2.15.1. The MCRT must have ability to provide community-based face-to-face
-assessments and interventions for people Immediately post-bpioid

. overdose or experiencing an OUD cnsis, in order to de-escalate vyithout
removing the individuals frorh their homes end/or community programs,
consistent with safety protocols. Crisis response can occur at multiple

:  locations, including but not Hmiited to:

2.15.1.1. In or at the Individuals'homes;

2.15.1.2. Other natural environments of residence;

2.15.1.3. Community settings;

2.15.1.4. Outpatient treatment settings;

2.15.1.5. Police stations; ■

2.15.1.6. Hospital emergency rooms; and

2.15.T.7. In the community.

The Menial Health Center of Qreater
Manchester, Inc. Sxhibti a Contractor iniUats
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in© MUKi- must have ability to respond to an individuarB-needs onstte.
typically within one (1) hour of the.request for crisis services, within their
proposed region, recognizing that occasionally, reaching Individuals in
more distant, rural areas of thef region may take more than one (1) hour.
Response times will be recorded and reviewed as part of the process and
detailed information will be gathered during the Initial call.

2.15.3. The MCRT must work to stabilize Individuals aS quickly as practicable and
assist thern in retuming to their pre-crisis level of functioning.

2.15.4. The MCRT must work and coordiriate with law enforcement or emergency
imedlcaj personnel to respond to Iridividuals In an OUD crisis In situations
involving law enforcernent or emergency medical personnel contact,
including developing a partnership agreement with local department(s)
within the region.

2.15.5. The MCRT must involve Peer Recovery Coaches or Certified Recovery
Support Worker(s) in providing crisis services and supports.

2.15.6. The MCRT must coordinate the individual's connection with their Doorway
to ensure as^ssment of the Individual's rieeds and identifying services arid
supports necessary to hfteet the individual's ne^s.

2.15.7. The MCRT, must coordinate all individual data and services with the
individual's Doorway to ensure that each individual served has a .GPRA
interview completed at Intake, three (3) months, six (6) months, and at
discharge.

2.16. When the individual consents to receiving ongoing care coordination frbtii their
Doorway, vendors rriust ensure transpo^tidn is provided for individuals from the
site of the crisis to the indivlduars local Doorway during normal business hours
(8am-5pm), and to their home, or other residential setting after stabilization has
occurred if between the hours of 5pm-8am. Any staff mernber providing
transportation musfhave:

2.16.1. A Valid driver's license;

2.16.2. A properly inspected vehicle; and

2.16.3. Proof that vehicle Is insured.

3. Staffing
3.1. The Coritractor shall have on staff the following:

3.1.1. One (1).MCRT Director: .

3.1.2. One {1)MPD Officer;

The Merttal Health Center o1 Greater i
Manchester. Inc. ExNWiA Cootroctor tnlUab
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■  ■,

3.1.4. One (1) MCRT Assistant Coordinator;

3.1.5. One (1) Intake Clinician:

3.1.6; - One (1) Certified Intentional Peer Support Specialist;
3.1.7. Four (4) Certified Recovery Support Workers:

3.1.8. Four (4) Master's Level Clinicians;

3.1'.9.- One,(1) Nurse Practitioner:

3..1.10. One (1) Practice Assistant; . "

3.1.11. Four (4) MLADC/LADC's Mobile Crisis Response Team Clinicians; and

3.1.12. One (1) OUD Intake Cllnilcian.

3.2. OUD Mobile Crisis Response Team Coordinator as part of the OUD MCRT shalj
have at a minlmurh the following qualifications;

3.2.1.' Master's degr^ In a human services field:
3.2.2. Current New Hampshlre.license or be license eligible;
3.2.3. ' Valid driver's lir^nse;
3.2.4.. Reliable vehicle with auto Insurance at a rhlninium of $10b,000/$300.000

coverage;

3.2.5. Training In crisis Intervention, risk management, assessment of suicide
potential and integrated treatment for co-occurring disorders; and

. 3.2.6. Basic computer experience.

3.3. Intake clinician, OUD.Mobile Crisis Response Tearh as part of the OUD MCRT.
shall have at a minimum, the following qualifications:

3.3.1. Master's degree in'a human services field; ^

3;3..2. At least one (1) year of work In the field of psychiatric/mental health
Services: ;

3.3.3. Training in crisis intervention; and ■

3.3.4. Basic computer experience. ,

3.4. ' Peer Support. Specialist/Certified Recovery Support Workers as part of the OUD
MCRT shall have at a minimum, the following qualifications;

3.4.1. High school diploma or GEO;

The Mental Heialth Center of Greater
Manchester, Inc. Exhibit a Contractor Initials
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■iA.'i: work expenence ano/or college level eaucation In the numan services TieiO
preferred;

3.4.3. Valid current driver's license;

3.4.4. Reliable vehicle with auto Insurance at a minimum of $ip0,000/$300.000
coverage;

3.4.5. Lived experience with a willingness to.djsclose-infprmation atout personal
recovery and successful management of.lri'e'mt'aiirne'aitnfGffi'inSflfSSg: •

3.4.6. Peer support certification through a program that is endorsed by the State
of New Hampshire, or a willingness to work toward such certification; and

3.4.7. Training In crisis inteivention.

3.5. MLADC/LADC ODD Mobile Crisis Response Team Clinicians shall have at a
minimum. the following qualifications:

3.5.|. Master's djegree.ln human services ifield;
3.5.2. Master Licerised Alcohol iand Drug Counselor or Licensed Alcohol and

Drug Counselor;

3.5.3. At least one (1) year of work in the field of psychiatric/mental health
services;

3.5.4. Valid current driver's license;

,3.5.5. Reliable vehicle with auto insurance at a minimum of $100.000/$300.000
coverage;

3.5.6. Training in crisis intervention, risk management, assessment .of ^suicide
potential and integrated treatment for co-occurring disorders; and.

3.5.7. Basic computer experience.

3.6. The Contractor shali have full time and per,diem staff, scheduled 24/7, including
skilled Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors/Licensed Alcohol and Drug
Counselors (MLADC/LADC);

3.7. The Contractor shall have experienced Peer Recovery Coaches/Certified
Recovery Support Workers (CRSWs) scheduled per diem 24/7 to be available at
a moment's notice to join clinicians in mobile crisis response

3.7.1. At a minimumi the Contractor shall ensure that Peer Recovery Coaches as
part of the OUD MCRT have:

3.7.1.1. A high school diploma;

3.7.1.2. Corripleted training through the Recovery Coach Academy;
The Mental Health Center-of Greater
Manchester, Inc. ExI^bliA Contractor InlUais
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bixteen (16) hoursora uepartment approvea btnics iraintng;

3.7.1.4. Six (6) hours of a Department approved Suicide Prevention

Training;

3.7.1.5. Six (6) hours ofa Department approved training on co-occurring
substance use and mental health disorders; and

3.7.1.6. Be certified as a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW),
when possible.

3.8. The Contractor shail.have MLADCs/LADCs and CRSWs wtio function as back-ups

for the regularly scheduled clinicians should they need assistance In fulfilling the

community's need for OUD MCRT 24/7 schedule;

3.9. The Contractor's OUp MRT CoordinMor and/or MCRT Director, and/or :MCRT
Assistant Director, all Master's Level Clinicians, shall available to assume the

role of the MLADCs.as necessary to meet community needs;

3.10. The Cphlxactof 'shai!] utilize tertiary 'back-up' staff who are skilled and versed in
ODD MCRT work and are employed in other roles within the agency during regular

business hours, and elect to do per diem v/o'rk as needed for the Oil D MCR Team
off regular business work hours, if needed;

3.11. The Contractor shall have 24/7 access to additional support from on^caii

psychiatrisVAPRN and MCRT supervisory staff and Administrator-on-Cail as

needed for consultation, CUD crisis management/treatment planning,

.  implementation and resolution of any issues and/or concerns that may arise.

4. Project Plan
4.1. The Contractor shall develop and submit a finai'project plan to the Depaf^ent for

approval within ten (10) days of the effective date of the contract. The project plan

shall:

-  4.1.1. Describe the action steps to be taken to ensure OUD MCRT are fully

operational within thirty (30) days pf the contract effective date, unless an

alternative timeline has been approved by the Department; and

4.1.2. Contain the staffing plan that ensures project plan activities are cdmpieted-
on schedule.

4.2. The Contractor shall enisure the following activities are completed within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date:

4.2.1. Infrastructure development including, but not limited to:

4.2.1.1. OUD MRCT staffing:

RFP-2019-BDAS-09-MOBIL-03 P«0« 16 0120 .Dots
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Partner wofKTiovy aeveiopmeni; ^ ^

4.2.1.3. Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs)/Agreements; and

4.2.1.4. ' Community engagement.

4.2.2. Systems redesign including, but not limited to:

4.2.2.1. MCRT resource reallocation;

4.2.2.2. Standardized policies & procedures;

4:2.2.3. Workflow design; and

'4.2.2.4. Reporting.

4.3. The Contractor shall within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date, provide

OUD MCRT sen/ices including, but not limited to:

.4:3.1. Crisis response;

4.3.2. Referral services;

4.3.3. . Reporting;

4.3.4. Transitions to care; and

4.3.5. MAT service delivery.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure that staff deliver the core services identified in Section

■ 2 by;:

;  4.4.1. ' Requiring supervisors to provide supervision to all staff on a minimum of
once per month; and

4.4.2.. Clinical staff shall participate in;group supervision/team meetings wtiich

utilize a multidisciplihary approach.

5. Reporting and Deliverable Requirements
'5.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports.to the Department, which include de-

identified aggregate data, beginning within thirty (30) days of the contract effective
, date, and submitted on the tenth (lOth)day of each month. These monthly reports

; shall include, but not be limited to:

5.1.1. Diagnoses;

5.1.2. Demc^raphic characteristics;

5.1.3. Substance use;

' 5.1.4. Numl^er of individuals served and types of services by the mobile crisis

team;

The Menial Health Center of Greater
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b.i.b. Numoer onnatviauaisseivea ana typesoT treatment ana recovery services

provided to s in the community (if applicable)

5.1.6. Types of MAT received, If appiicable;

5.1.7.'. Erhploymerit status:

5.1.6. Criminal justice Involvement;

5.1.9: Housing status;

5.1.10. Insurance status and carrier of Individual who received services;

5.1.11. Date and time of contact;

5.1.12. Location of where service was provided;

5.1.13. Length of time service or services provided;

5.1.14. Whether or not law enforcement was invbived;.-

5.1.15. Whether or not there was emergency medical personnel Involvement;

5.1.16. Whether or not services provided beyond the Immediate crisis were
coordinated with the Doofway(s): ^

5.1.17. The number of Individuals who were referred for ongoing care with their
Doorway;

5.1.18. Statistics on aversions frorn hbspitalizations'in the regions served;

5.1.19. Outcome of service(s) provided, including hospitalization, Doorway
contact, home, emergency room and any other service resulting from the
contact:

5.1.20. Response time; and

5.1.21. Referral. source, including doorway, law: enforcement, or emergency
medical personnel.

5.2. Requiring supervisors to provide supervision to all staff on a minimum of once per
month. , • •

5.3.. The Contractor shall ensure Specific, Measureable. Achievable, Relevant and

Timed (SMART) outcomes for OUD MGRT to include; but not limited to:

5.3.1. Contacting three hundred ftfty (350) individuals who present 'with OUD
within the first year of operation;

5.3.2. Receiving an average, of three hundred fifty (350) referrals per month for
individuals who present with OUD (including seif^referrals and. from

community partners);

The Mental Health Center of Greater
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o.d.J. Answering an average ot inree nunoreo rorty-nve (;j4b) phone calls per
month for individuals wt^o present with ,OUD;

5.3.4. Providing one hundred (100) bed days annualiy for individuals who present
with ODD;

5.3.5. Providing OUD MCRT response within one (1) hour of request;

6. Performahce Measures
6.1. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of individuals served, who enter care

directly through the vendor and consent 16 information sharing with the Doorway,
receive a Doorway referral for ongoing , care coordination and GPRA data
collection.

6.1.1. Maintaining a greater than ninety percent (> 90%) OUD MCRT hospital
diversion rate; and

6.1.2. Assessing one hundred percent (100%) of Individuals contacted who
present with suicidal Ideation/behaviors.,

7. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards
7.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded

initiatives,' the Contractor shall establish Tormal infoimation sharing and referral
agreenients with all .Doorways for substance use sen/ices that comply with all
applicable confideritiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

7.2. The Contractor shall complete individual referrals to applicable doorways for
. substance use services within two (2) business days of an individual's admission

•  to the program-

7-3. The Contractor shall not receive payment for any invoices for services provided
through SOR^grant funded initiatives' until the Department verifies -that the
Contractor has completed all required individual referrals; verification of individual

referrals shall be completed through the New Hampshire Web Information
Technology System (WITS) and through, audits pf Contractor invoices.

7.4. The Contractor shall ensure that only FDA-approved MAT for Opioid Use Disorder
(OUD) is utilized. FDA-approved MAT for OUD includes;

7.4.1. Methadone.

7.4.2. Buprenorphine products, including:

7.4.2.1. Single-entity buprenorphine products.

7.4.'2.2. Buprenorphine/naloxone tablets.
The Menial Health Center 61 Greater ^
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•  ■ • buprenorpninemaioxone rums. • •

7.4.2.4. Buprenorphine/naloxone buccal preparations.

7:4.2.5. Long-acting injectable buprenorphlne products.

7.4.2.6. Buprenorphine implants..

7.4.2.7. Injectable extended-release naitrexone.

7.5. The Contractor shall oniy provide medical vyithdrawal management services to any
supported by SDR Grant Funds If. the withdrawal managemerit service Is
accompanied by the use of Injectable extended-release naitrexone, as clinically
appropriate.

7.6. The Contractor shall provide the Departrhent with timelines and Irnplementation
plans assoclated.with SOR funded activities to ensure services are In place within
thirty (30) days of the contract effective dale. ■ ' ̂

.  7:6.1. If the Contractor. Is unable to offer services within the required timeframe,
•  the Contractor shall submit an updated. implementation plan to the

Department for approval to outline anticipated service start dates.

7.6.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate
unspent funds" if services are not'in place within ninety (90) days of the
contract effective date.

'7.7. "The Contractor shall ensure that individuals receiving financial aid for recovery
housing utilizing SOR funds shall only be In a recovery housing facility that Is
aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery Residences standards and
registered with the State, of New Hampshire. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
in accordance with current NH Administrative Rules.

7.0. The Contractor shall assist individuals with, enrolling In public or private health
insurance.. If the Individual is determined eligible for such coverage.

7.9. The Contractor shall accept Individuals for MAT and facilitate access to MAT on-
slte or through referral for all individuals supported yrith SOR Grant funds, as
clinically appropriate. ^

7.10. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryari White HIV/AIDs program for
individuals Identified as at risk "of or with HIV/AIDS.

7.11. The Contractor shall ensure that all individuals are regularly screened for tobacco
use. treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of treatment planning..

The Menial Health Center of Greater i ^1} /
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Method arid Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with federal funds as follov^: 100% Federal Funds from the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, State Opioid. Response
Grant, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #^3.788, and Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) TI081685. .

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance.with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may
jeopardize the.fuhded Contrador's current and/or fugure funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved.
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget and Exhibit B-2, Budget.

4.2.The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement
for authorized expenses incuired in the prior month.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to. initiate payment.

4.4: The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of.
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department:
funded programs and services and have records available for Departrhent review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, Generaj Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. Invoices may be mailed to:

. SOR Finance Manager
■  Department of Health and Human Services
BDAS, State Opioid Response
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Th6 Menial Health Center of Greater Exhibit B Corttrecior InhJal)
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8. The State, reserves the right to not process payment for any invoices submitted more
than sixty (6) days after the arid of the billing month.

9. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or .documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B. , ■

10.Notvvithstanding anything to the contrary herejn, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

11. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price iirnitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and rhay be
made without obtaining approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.

12; The Contractor shall provide a final budget for State Fiscal "Year 2021, no later than
March 31, 2020 for Department approval.

'RFP-2010-BOAS-09-MOBIL:03 Page 2 of 2 Date
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Exhibit C

SPECIAL PRQVISinMR

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractbr.for services provided to eligible
individuals:and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the bepartmerit for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are. prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In'addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data'file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall lnclude all
information necessary to .support an eligibility determination and .such other Informatiort as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
indi'^duals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination: The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall.be permitted to fill out

. an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any'Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this.Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If It is
determined thai payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees .or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. .Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the, contra^ contairied in the Contract or Inany
other dpcumerit, contract or understanding, it is expriessly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no paymerits .will t>e made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for ariy services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall.be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for sendees' or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services'.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwi^slanding anything to the coritrary.contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be darned to obligate or-require the Department to purchase services

.  hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in.excess of the Cbntractors.costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessaiv to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate vrtilch exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any Ume during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

. 7.1,' Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rates.shall be established;
7.2-. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of. Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitt^ to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to •
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for 8er>^ces
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such.servicesat
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.'

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALtTY: .

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specined above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to rnainlain the fotiowirig records during the Contract Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: .books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting ell costs
,and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly.reflect all such costs and expenses, and'which are acceptable to the Departmeht. and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of cbsts such as
purchase requisitions and orders.' vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of
In-kind contributions, tabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

.8!2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollmerit, attendance'or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records, shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records

. regarding the provision of services and aD invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
•payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days,after the close of the
agency fiscal year! It is recomnhended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Managem'ent.and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of Slates. Local Governments, and-Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
•Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
; they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
, Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their

- designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursyantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, exammatjon. excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in lirnitation of obligations of the Coritract. it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception. " , ■

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information; reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected •
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall.be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor.' provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection-with their official duties and for purposes

'  directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, -that
the use or disclosure by any party of anyinformation concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directJy conriected- wiih the administration of the Departmerit or the Contractor's responslbiliUes v^th
respect to purchased services heriaunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. J\
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditjons contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever. -

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowlng
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reportsi-Written interim financial reports contajning-a detailed description of

all costs and; non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractbrto the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall.be submittad on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall t>e submitted within thirty (30) days after the end.of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Departrnent and shall
contain a summary statement of prog.ress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other informaUon required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Di^ilowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of 'ttie
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upbn.payment of the price limitatiori
hereunderi the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereurider (except such obligations as,-

' by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the. termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and-other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

'13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State .
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Hurhan Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (vwitten, video, audio) produced or
.  -purchased'under the contract shall have prior'approval frorn DHHS before printing, production,

distribution or use.. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced,' including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Coritractor shall not reproduce any rnaterials produced'under the contract without

. prior written approval frorh DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the. operation of any facilities
for providing services, the 'Coritractor shall comply with all'la^, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any dlri^tion of any Public Officer or officers
pureuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of-the services at such facility. If any governmental license or

■ permit shall be required for the operation pf.the said facility or ttie perfomiai^ce of the said sen,rices,
'  the Contractor will procure said .license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and

conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing re.quirements, the' -
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requiremerits of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the Ideal fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-

'  laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan.(EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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•more employees, it will maintain a cun-ent EEOP on file and submit ah EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying il'is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are. required to submit a certification-form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification'Forms are .available at: http://www.ojp.usdOj7about/ocr/pdfs/cen.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Lirnlled.English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidarwe. nationalorigln
discrimination Includes.discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance, with the Orhnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets. Act of 1968 arid. Title .Vi of the .Civil -
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that Lep persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protectloris: The
following shall apply to all coritracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In4d
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000) ♦ '

Contractor Employee Whistleslower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whisUeblovyer rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whlstleblower protections establishedat
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

•  (b) The Contractor shall Inform Its employees iri writing, in the predominant language pf the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section

'  3:908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

1,9. Subcontractore: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or cdnvenience.
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
sut^ntracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the.deieg^ed
funbtion(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
' responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the 'same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor.compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to. a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the follo.wing:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
•  the function

• 19.2. Have a written agreement with the sut>contractor that specifies activities andreportirig
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontrador's
performance Is not adequate

,  19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functlonsand
• respohsibllities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed - .

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review end approve all subcontracts..

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. -COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect.Items of expense'determlned by the Department
'  ' . to be allo^^ble and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established

.  in accordance with'state and federal taws, regulations, rules.end orders.

20.2. : pEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services'. : ■

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the; Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor In accordance with the terms arid conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources oil revenue for each service to be provldeid
•urider the Contract.

20.4. ■ UNIT: For each service that the Contrector is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder, shall
meah that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
In Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
ail such laws, regulations; etc. as they may'te amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any'existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.'

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreeihent to the contrary, all obligations of the State ,
hereunder, including without'limitation, the continuance of payments,Tn whole or in .part,

' under .this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequerit changes to the appropriation or availability of furids affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminatesi or otherwise'
mc^ifies the appropriation'or'availability.-of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Si^pe of Services, in whole or in part.-in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. -In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have.the right to withhold payment until such funds become.available, if ever. The

-  State shall -have the right 'to reduce,: terminate or- m'bdify services under this Agreement-
- irnmediately upon giying^he-'Contractor notice of.such reduction, termination .or modification..

■ The State shall riot be reqijired'td transfer funds from any other source or account into the'
Accbuht(s). identified In block 1.6. of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the eventfunds are reduced or unavailable: .

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination', Is amended by addirtg the
following language:

10.1 The State may terminate-the Agreement at any time.for any reason, at the sole.discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor .written notice that the State is. exercising its

•  option-to terminate the Agreement.

10.2. .In the event of early termination, the Contractor sh'alV within 15 da^ of notice of early
termination, develop and'submit, to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but riot lirnited to, ideriti^ng the present and future .needs'of clients!
receiving-services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those n^ds. !

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide 'detailed
information to support .the Transition Plan including, but not limited to,-any infoririatlon or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement, and Transition plan
arid.'shall provide ongoihg.'communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In-the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving-
.  services under the Agreemer^t are transitioned-to haying services delivered.by'ahother entity

including contracted 'providers' or the State, .the Contractor shall provide- a pro.cess for
uninterrupted delivery-of sei^ce.s in.the Transition Plan. , •

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
atx)ut the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described abo^ra:

B2^g^:•
'The Department reserves the right to'extend .this Agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of se^ces, available funding', agreement'of the parties and
approval of the Governor and ̂ ecutive Couricil.

CU/DHHS/110713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS.

The Vendor iden^^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with ̂ e ptwslons of
Sections 5151-5160 of the DrU^reeWdrlcptaceAd bf 19M (Pub. L. 100^90. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 7.01 et seq.), end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisionis execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This cerlification is Quired by the regulations implementing Sectioris 51.51-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. TItie V. Subtftie 0; 41 U.S.C. .701 et seq. j. The January 31. "

. .1989 regulat.ions were amended and published as Pert II of the May 25,1990 F^erai Register (pages
21681-21691). and i^uire certi^catibn by. grantees (and by inference, sub-gmntees. and sub-
Mntractors), prior to award, that they'will maintain a driig-f^.vrarkplace. Sectibri 3017.6.36(c) of the
riagulatipn provides that a grantM (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-dontr^actors) that is a State
may elect to rnake one certificatibri to the Departirierit In each federal fiscal year.in lieu of certificates for
each grar)t during the federal fiscal year, cpvet^'by the cerlification. . The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon y^ich.iallance is placed when the agency awards, the grant, False
certification.or \hblatibn of the ceftrficatibn shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
ternination of grants, of government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using.this form should
seridltt'o: -

Commissioner

NH bepartident of Health and Hurhan Services
129 Pleasant Street, ^
Cbncpfd, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or wiil.cofitinue to provide a drug-free workplace by: ' .
1.1. Publishirig.a statement notifying ernployees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution..

' dispensing, possession or use of a coritrolied substance is prohibited in the graritee'e
workplace and^pecifying the.actioris that will be.taken against ernployees for violation of such
prbhibrtibn; " . ' ' ; •

1.2. ■ Establishing an ongoing drug-free awreness prograrn to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse if) 6ie .Mori^iace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintainihg a drug-free workpiace;-
1.2.3. Ariy available driig .counMling, rehabilitation,' andernployee'assistant prbgrarrisidrtd
1.2.4^ • The pbnalties that rriay be irhposed upon employees for driig abuse violations '

occurring in the wbrkplaMi
1.3. Makmg It a requirement ̂ t each eiriployee to be engaged in the performer^ of the grant Im .

given a copy of the statement required by.paragraph (a);
1.4. ' Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

emptoyment under the grant, the ernployee wilt
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the sietemerit; arid

•  1.4;2. Notify the erriployer in writing of his or her conation for a violation of a criminal drug.
. statute Occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
convlctior);

1.5. 'Notifying the agency in N^ing, withih ten catehdar days aftier receiving notice under,
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an erriployee or otherwise receivirig actual riotice of such conviction.
Employers of.convicted employees must pro^e notice, including poisition title, to every grarit
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

E;tfUbR 0 - CertiftcsSon regsnflng Orug FrM Vendor Irdtleb
Workplade Requlmnents
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has designated a centra! point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shafl Include the
identification number(s) of each effeded grant;

1.6. T^irig one of the fdilo^ng actions, within 30 calendiar da^ of receivtr^ notice under
sub^ragraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee v^o is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate (^reonnel action against such an erhployee, up to end indudin'g

teimination, consistent wHh the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1673, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such erhployee to participate satisfactorily iri a drug abusei assistance ipr
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
1^ enforcement, or other appropriate agency;'

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Impiementatioh of paragraphs "l.i. 1.2, 1.3,1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantM may Insert in the sp^e provided below the slte(8) for.the performance of "wort* done In
connectiorS with the specific grant

Place of Perforrriance (street address, city, county; state, zip code) (list each location)

2^^ VyJilson^te., MarOoe&tefi l4i ilsbo(T)i^vi
Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified .here. O^i CT^

Vendor Narne: "Hie Me^ral Hcalfli Ctnta-of finrder
MatTOTfisfei'

30i 201^ .
Dale .Name: 'Rldy

T''et,*4cn+/ceo

0 - CeniAcstlon regardng Drug Free Vendor MtlaU
Workplace RoqieementswerKpuce noMUueineiiii
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New Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services
Exhibit E

CERtiFICATIQN REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identifle^j In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agr^ to comply with the provisions of
Section 310 of Public Law ldl.«121, Gpvemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, arkj
31 U;S.C. 1352, and further agrees to Have the Contractoi^s reprwhtative, as identified in Sections 1.11
ar^ 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certtfic^ipn:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION rCONTRACtORS
US DEPARTMENt OF AGRICULTURE: CONTRACTORS

Prograrfis (indicate epplirable prpgrorn coyercid):;
Temporary Assistance to .NeMy Families under THIe IV-A ' \
'Child Support Enforcement Program urider Title IV-p
•Social Sjetyices B}6d( Grant Prograrn under Titte XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX -
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Developrnisnt Block Grant under Title IV.

The undersigned certifies, t'6 the bast of his or her.knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or oh behalf of the uhdersignied. to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence art officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, ah officer or employee of Congress, or an erriployee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, corfllnu^ion, rehevral. amehdrrient, or
modification of any Federal coritracrt, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub^'rantee or sutxontractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an pfficer.or ernployee of any. agency, a Member of Congress,
en officer or employee of Congress, or an emptoyee.of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.(and by specific mention sub-grantee or 8Ut>^
' contract!^), the undersigned shall cornpiete and submit Standard Forrn LLL, (Disclosure Fonn to
.Report Lobbying, in accordance .with its instructions', attached end identified as Startdard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require.that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awaids at all tiers (including sut^ntracts, sub^rahts. end contracts under grants,

.  loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all'sub^ecipients shall cert^ er)'d disclose accordiiigiy..

This certification is a ihaterial fepreserttation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was rhade or.entered into. Submission of this.ceitificatiori is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction irnposed by Section 1352, Title 31,.U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the.required .
certification shall be subject to a civil pertalty of hot lesi) than $10,000 and not more thari $.100,000 for
each such failure.

Ven^r Name:Tt* Mcrtal Mealtti CcrtO-of GwatcT
>^ncih€s«.r

Apn l 3C>i 20A : ■
Dale Name: \AliName: WnVlOm'Tli'Acr

President/CffO

EMbft E • C«rUflC8l)on RegaRflng Lobbying .Vendor Inltiais.

cuiOHKyii'6713 Pe^lof.1 bate



New Hampshire Department of Health and Hurhan Services
Exhibit F

CERTiFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office.of the Priesideint, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, aind Other Responsibility Matters, and further agr^ to have the Contractor's
rapresentative, as identified Iri Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute thefoilowing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICA-nON
1. By signing and submitting this propbsel.Ccpntract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below!-

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below ̂ 11 not necessartly resutt in denial
of participation in this cbver^ tranMdion. if necessary, the prospective participant shall subrnit an
explanation of v^y it cannot provide the oerWcation. the certification or expianatioh v^ll be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Heafth aihd Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction-. However, failure, of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify siich person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of facrt upon which reliahceWas placied
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determlfied that the prospective
primary participant knowiiigly rendered an erroiieous certi^tiori, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Governrrient. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospi^ive primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time ̂ e prospective prlma^ pai^ipent leems
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous^by reason of changed
circurhstances.

5. The terms -covered transaction,* 'debarred,' 'suspended,'.'ineliglbie,' 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant.' 'person,"prirhary cpverdd trehMctibn,* 'principai,' 'proposal,Vand
'vbiuntaiily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanih'gs set out in the Defi.nitions arid
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. Seethe
attached definitiohs.

6. The prospective prirnary participant agrees by submitting this prbppsaf (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction entered into, it shail not k'nc^hgjy enter Into any lower .tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarri^, suspended, declared iriellgible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this co^red-tiansactlon, unless authpnzed'by DHHS,

7. The prbspiacttye primary pa^cipant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certificatior) Riagarding Debarment, Susperision, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Trarisaciions,* provided by DHHS, wi^bilt modification, in ad lower tier covered
tran^ctioris and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A partici^nt ir> a covered transaction may rely upon a certificatibn of a prospective participarit in a
tower tier covered .trarisaction th^ it Is riot debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide ̂ e method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participarit may, but is not requlr^ to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be constmed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in .good faith the certification required by this clause. The kr>owledge and

Eevblt R - Ceritflcatlon Rogordlno Oebarment, Suspension Vendor.lnitlali
And Other RespomiUnty Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of ci partlclpent Is not required to exceed that which is normally possMsed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. jExcept for transactions authorized under paragr^h 6 of these instructions. If a participant In a
covered transactioh knowingly enters into a lower tier covered trahsactton with a perron who is
susperidedi debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation iri this treitsaction, in
.addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRI^WRY COVERED TfWN^CTlONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and Its

•principals: " • -
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered, tranroctipns by any Federal departmenit or agency;
11.2. havis noi wi^in a three>yror peri^ preceding this proposal (rontr^) t^n ronvicted of or had

a civjl judgrhent rendered agalrist them for comirtissibn of fraud or a c^lnal ̂ ense In
conn^ofi with obtairiing, attempting to obtain, or performing a putllic (Federial, State or local)

.  transactibii or a contract under a public transaction; violation of F^eral or State antrtfust
statutes or conimission of emt>ezztement' theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records,, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

-  11.3: are hot presently indicted for otherwise crirhinally or civilly charged by a go\^rhmehtal entity.
(F^eral,. State or Ipbal) with c^mlMlon of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph' (l)(b)
of this certification: and •

11.4; have not within a threerj^ar period preceding'Uiisapplication/prbposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal; State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective prirnary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification; such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract);

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13.' By signing arid submitting this lower tier proposel-(contract). the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR PeH 76, certifies to the best of Its kribwiedge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debari^. suspended, prbpb^ for. debarment, declared irieltgible, or

voluntarily excluded frbm participation in this transaction by any federardepartment or agency.
.13.2. where the prospective, lower, tier.partidpent is un^le tp certify to any of the abo.ve. such

prospective participant shall .attach an e)q)lanation to .this proposal (contract). -

14. The prospective Ipwer.tter particjp.ant further agrees by, submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
■ includq this claus.e entKled'Cei^ication Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, arid
Voluntary Exclusion - l.ower tier Covered Transactions.* without mpdificatlon In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.'

Vendor N^fThe Hu\\a\ Ccnta- oP Grmtcr

30,201^ ^ //I70A.Z
pa'« Name: VimiOwrt Til Oar

™8 /ceo

- 0^1btt F - C«rtlflc«Uon Reg«rtfng Debarment, Siapenaion Vendor Ir^Uala
' And Other RetporislWDty Matten "di '
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New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUiREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the.General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ' " ' •

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgraiitiaes or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminatlon requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients.of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, elther.in employment practices or in
the dellvefy of services or benefrts, on the besis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

-■ the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Preverttion Act of 20.02 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
.reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act.. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited frorn discriminating, either in.emptoyment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits,'on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan .requirements;
• the Ciyil Plights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discrimlriating orithe basis of .race„color. or national origin in any prograrri or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discririiinatihg on the basis'of disability, in regard to employment artd the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;
- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C." Sections 12131-34), which prohibits •
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons'with disabilities in employment. State and local
government senrices, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• - the Education'Amendments'of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sectibns-168i.-1683,"1685-^6), which prohibits "
discrimination on the basis of sex iii federally assisted education programs;
• the Ago Oiscrimination.Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving F^eral financial assistance. It does not Include
employment discrirriination;
-28C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^ulations:-OJJDP Grant Programs); 2B C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive.Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
bf^anizations); Executive Order. No. 13559, which provide. fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighbqiliood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations T Equal Treatment for FaithrBased
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year.2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted.Jahuary 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for ;
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for cehain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certlficaliori shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or '
debarment.

ExMbHG
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a ilnding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin,- or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health end Huinan Services; and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

♦.

The Vendor identified in Section t .3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections! 1.11 arid 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submittirig this proposal, (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions .
indicated above.

Vendor Name: McnVal Heoltti Ccnltr of: Grmfcr

April an, 2D>q .
Data Name: \Mirudm "Rl(ler

TVesidCf*; yceo

ExNbllG

Vendor Inldals-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL tOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part G - En>^ronmehta1 Tobacco Smoke, also kho>wi as the Pro-Childreri Act of 1994
(Act), mqulres that srnqkihg not be permitt^ in any portion of arly indoor, facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or reguleHy for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library serves to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local gbvemmehts, by Fedef^ grant, contract loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to chii.dren's services provided in privaite residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcaid funds, end portions of facilities used for inpatient drag or alcohol treatment Failure
to coihply with the provisloris of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty d up to
$1000 per day and/or the Impositbn of an administrative compliance order on the responsible eritity.

The Vendor ideritlfied in Section 1 ;3 of the General Provisions agms, by slgnatura of ̂ e Contractor's
represenrative as identrfted in Sedion i.11 end 1:12 of the General Provisions, to execirte the following
certificatibn:

1. By sipnirig and submitting this contract, the Ver^or agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C', known as the ProrChitdreh Act of 1994.

Vendor Name; The Nittrikl Hcdittl of Grca^
MatnChtfettT

Mlaoliq •
Pa'8 Naine: vvJdUam "Rider

"PrreidtnV- VCeo

ErtfUbd H - Cenfflcetlon Rsgsrdtno Vendor inlUais
Envlroruneflts) Toboceo Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human iServlces

Exhibit!

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

.BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreemdrit agrees to
comply with the Health Ihsurarice Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defihed herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and sutxrontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use. Of have access to protected heal^ information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shall mean the State of New. Harhpshire; Department of Health and Hurtiah Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have ̂ e same meaning ais the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

•b. 'Business Associate' has me meaning given such term in .Mction 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the niedrilng given such term In section 160.103 of Titie 45,
Code of Federal Regulatioris.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designaited record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. .

e. 'Data Aggregation' shall have the same, meaning as the term 'data aggregation' In 45 CFR
• Section .1W.50L

f. "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164,501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Infotmation Technoipgy for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TltleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American iRecovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Ihsurarice Pprtability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law .
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security oLIndividualiy Identifiable Health
Infdrmatlph, .45. CFR Parts 160.162 arid 164 and amendments meretp.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'indivlduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
arid shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

*  . / • *

. j. 'Privacy Rule' shall rnean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Infdfmation at 45 CFR Paris 160 and 1^. prbmulgatied_ under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health arid Huniari Services.

k. "Protected Health inforniation. shall have the same rfieaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section li60.103, limited to the information created or received by_
Business Associate from of on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExNMI Vendor mrusls
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

I. 'Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section IM. 103.

m. 'Secretarv' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Hurhan Services or
his/her designed.

n. "Securltv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 1^, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

6. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protect^ health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredit^ by the Americari National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • ̂1 terms hot otherwise defined herein shail Have the rheanihg
established under 4i5 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as arhended from tirhe to time, and the
HITECH

Act;

(2) Business Associate-Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose^ maintain ot transmit Protected Health
Inforrhation (PHI) except as reaspnably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but riot limited to all
Its directors, officers, ernplpye^ and agents, shall hot use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manr^er that wpuld constitute a vioiation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. . Business Associate .may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II.. As required by law, pursuant to ̂ e terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

■ ). ill. For data aggregation puiposesforthe.heaith care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the e)dent Buslriess Associate is permitted urider the Agreenierit to disclose PHI to a
>  ithird party. Business Associate must pbtairi, prior to making any .such disclosure, (I)

reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held .confidentially and
used or further disclosed Only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (II) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidehtiaility of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Assoclate.shall riot, uriless such disclosure is reasonably ne^.ssary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreernent, disclose any PHI iri response to a
request for disclosure on^e basis that It Is required by law, without first notifyirig
Covered Entity so that Cover^ Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such dlscloisure, the Businessness^t

3/2014 ExNbftI Vettfor imoalt.
Health.lnsursnce PorbUlity Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services

Exhibit!

Associate shall refrairi from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
rehrt^ies. .

e. If the Covered Entity notrfiies the: Business Associate that Covered Entity has agredd to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pureuant to the Priva^ and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additlohal restiictiohs arid shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Actlvltlfls of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer irtimediately
.after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreemerit Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any secu^' incident that may have ah impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a lisk assessment when it becomes
aWare of any of the above situations, the risk assessment shall include, biit hot be
limited to:

0 the nature and extent of the prote^ed health Information Involved. Including the
types of identifiers ar^d the likelihood of re^dentificatron;

0 the unauthorized person used the protected health ihformatioh or to whorn the
• disclosure was made;

0 Whether thei protected health information was actually acquired of yiiewed
,  0 . • The extent to which the risk to the jarplect^ health information has.beeri

mitigated.

The Busine^ Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
. breach and imrhi^iately report the findings of the:risk assessrrient In writing to the'
Cover^ Eritity.

c. . . The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate sha|i make available all of its internal policies arid procedures, books
and records relating .to the use arid disclosure of .PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate oh behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's conhpliahce with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security'Rule..

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
- access to PHI under the Agreement; to agree in ̂ tirig to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided urider Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party berieficiary of the Contractors business associate
agreements ̂ th Contractor's intended business associates, ~v^o will be receiving P|

3/2014 ExNbfll yendwtmuali
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

ExhibH I

pursuant to this Agreement, With rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shail be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
.contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreemient for the puir^se of use and dlsciosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business da^ Of receipt of a written request frorn Cover^ Entity,
Business Associate shail niake avaiiabie duriri'g normal business hours at its offices all

.  records, books, agreements, policies end procedures relating to the use and discjpsure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Coyered Eritlty to determine
Business Associate's conipllance with the terms of the Agreerpent. . . \

g. Withm ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, .
Business.Associate sha|l provide access 10 PHI In. a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirerhents'underASCFRSe^on 164.524.

h. Wjthih ten (10) business days of .receiving a ̂ tten request from Covered Entity for an
ameridm.erit of PHI or a record about ari'indrvidual contained in a Designated Record
Set/the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
' ameridment and incorporate any such arnendmerit to enable Coyered Entity to fulfill Its '
obllgatibris.under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document 'such disclosures of PHI arid inforrriatiori related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
• Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI iri accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. ;Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request frorri Covered Entity for a'
request for an accbunting.of disclosures oif PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Coveted Entity may require to i^lfiil Itspbligatipris
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accOuriting of PHI
directly from the Business'Associate, the-Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward sucH r^uest to Coyered Entity. Covered'Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individuai's request to Covered Entity would cause Coyered Entity or the Business.
Associate to violate HIPM and the Privacy arid Security Rule, the Business Associate
shail instead respond to ̂ e individuai's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as pra^cable:

I. Within ten (10) buslness;days of termination of ̂ e Agreement, for any ̂ asori, the
Business Associate shall return pr destroy, as specified by Covered Eritity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate iri connection with the.
Agreernent, and shall not retajn any copies of back-up tapes of such PHI. if return or
destruction is hot feasible; or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
die Agreement, Business Associate shiall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the returri or destructiori infeasible, for so long as Business J .

3/2014 eiWblt I Vendor InlUats \JJ\L/^
HeaRh.lnsuranbs PoiiAblDty Ad-
BuUneu Astodtte AeTMrnent ijlaKn^

Pege 4of6 Date \ iuOl In



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity. In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy.any or all PHI, thd Business Associate shall ceility to
ICovered Entity ftat the PHIhas been.destroyed.

(4) bbllaatlons of Covered Ehtftv

a. Covered Entity shall notity Business Associate of any chariges or limitatiqn(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In ac^rdance yvith 45 CFR Section
1M.S20, to the e)dent that such chiange or llmit^on may affect Busir^ess Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. ^

b. ' Covered Entity shall promptly notity Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
pf permission provide to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164:508.

e

c. Covered entity shall promptly notity Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHj that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR '164.522,
'to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Assoclaie's use or disclosure of
PHI. "

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreerhent the Covered Entity niay Immediately terminate the Agreerhent upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of ̂ e Business Associate
Agreement set forth hereln .es Exhibit I. The Coyered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provlde an opportunity for Busiriess Associate to cure the

, alleged breach within a timefranie specified by. Covered Entity. If Covered Entity .
detennihes that neither terrhination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Defiriitlons and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein
shall have the same meanirig as those terms in the Priva^ and Security Rule, amended
from time to tirn'e: A reference jn the Agreerhent, as arnended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security'Rule means the Sectipn as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Coyered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreen^nt. from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to corhply )^h the changes in the requirements of HIPAa, the Privacy and
Security Rule,, arid applicable federal'and state law.

c. Data OwriefshlD. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has hp ownership rights
with respect to the PhI provided by.or created on behaif of Covered Entity. .

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA; the Privacy and Security Rule. ^ /
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e. Seoreoation. If any temi or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
'person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidi^ shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declaried severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI , return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) i. the
defense arid Indemnification prpvl^ons of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN .WITNESS Hereof, the parties hereto have diity executed this Exhibit I.

Department of.Health and Human Services

The State ^

A ̂  -
Signature of Authorized Representative

f Authow^ RepresentativeName of Auth(

Title of Authorized Representative

Date
tea

The NfenVol Vteiltn Center oP fireater MQnch<rs<cr
Name of the Vendor '

Sighature of Authorized Representative

"Rider
Narne of Authorized Representative

Tr<rsidQnf /ri^Q .
Title of Authorized Representative

ApriV ..
Date

3/2014 .ExNUl I
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prinie awardees of indlvidijal
Federal grants equal to of greater than $25,000 arid awiard^ oiri or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to er^utive cornpensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirernents. as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reportirig Subaward and ̂ ecutive Compensation Irrformatibn); the
Department of Health and Hurnan Services (OHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward pr contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name .of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency,
4. NAICS code for Mntm^ / CFOA program number for grarits
.5. Prograrn source
6; Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of perfortnance .
9. Unique identifier of the er^tity (D.UNS #)
TO. Total compensation and riames of the top five executives if:'
^ 10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, arid those

.  revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients rriust submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the'Gerieral Provisions agrees to comply with the prbyisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Lew 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Repiorting Subaward end Executive. Compensatiori Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractors representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisipris
execute the followng Certification: . ,
The below named Vendor agrees to. p^de.needed information as outlined atMve to the iNH Depart^rit
^ Health and Human Services and to comply with all epp.Iical)le provisions of the Federal Financial
'Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: The Mchtal HfQl+h Center ,oP Grearttr

30i201^ ■ ■ . :
Date ^ Nanne: Vgi lllam 'Rvdtr

Title: ^ ICZti

BMM J - Certrflcstlon ReocrtOng the Federel Funding Vendor tnitlels
AceouniabaHy And Treneperency Ad (FFATA) CompSence " ii.-i I ./%
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisioris; I certify that the respdnses .tb the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is: 61jT182&Q

2. In your business of organization's preceding completod fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (i) 60 percent or rnore of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, subrgrants. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrents, and/pr
cooperative agreements? '

£ NO •YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the foDowing:

3. Does the public have access to information about ̂ e conipensatibh of the executives in your
business Or organization through periodic reports filefd under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 16^ (15 U.S.C78m(a), 78o(d)j or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
198iB? ■ • ^

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, Stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

The names and cornpensation pf'the five most highly corhpensated officers in youribusiness or
orgeni^on are as follows:

Name:

Name:.

' Name:

Name:

Narrie:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

^piint:

Amount:

CUOHHSn 107.13

ExMbfl J - Certtftcotlon Rogarding the Pedere) Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compfiande
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The folipwing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the toss of control, .compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to

'  situations where persons other than authorized users and for an. other than
authorized purpose have access, or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach'shall have the sarrie rheianing as the term-Breach'in sedion

■ 164.402 of title 45; Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NjST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standardis and Technology, U.S. Department

.  of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data' means all confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
-  the State Of NH - created,-received from pr on t}ehalf 'Of'the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing Oontracted
services - of which collection, disclosure; protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal, law or regulation.. This, information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Infortmation (PHI), Personaf Information (PI), Personal Financial
information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "Erid User" means a'ny. persori or entity'(e.g., contractor, cpntractor's employee,
.business associate,-subcontractor, other. downstream user, etc.) that' receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of .this Contract.

5. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenf mearis an act that potentiaily violates an explicit or implied security policy,
: which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing Or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmv^re, or software characteristics without-the. owner's knowledge. Instnjction.'or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Lflstupdate 1(V0S/ie ' EiAlbltK ContractorInlUalft.
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DHHS Information Securlty.Requlrements

mail, all of which may. have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless NehA/ork' means any nelworK or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology, or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, arrd
approved, by means of, the State, to transmit) will be corisldered ah open
network arid not adequatdy secure for, the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.
' I ' ' '

0. 'Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or \^eh combined with other persbnall or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Infomiation" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

■  1'60.103. , ■ ■ ■ '

11. "Security Rule"^ shall mean the Security Staridards for the Protection of Electronic
• Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments

thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected.Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusat)le, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the Amencan Nationarstandards Institute,

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information..

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose., rnaintain or transmit Gorifidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but riot limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, mainlain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy arid Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential. Information in response to a

vs. Ustupdate 1008/16 SxhlUlK ' Ck^ctorInitials.
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS. has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over ahd^abiove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be. bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in vioiatlori of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguard.s.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from discio^ to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. *

6. the Contractor agrees to grant access to the data, to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to cohfiim compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

I. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Appiication Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidentiai Date between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated l>y ah expert knowledgeable In cyber security and teat said
application's ehciyption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Intemet

.  2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypt^ Email. End- User may only eimploy emaij to transmit borifideritlal Date if
email is encrypted and beino sent tp and being received by ernaii addresses of
persons authorized to receive such informatibn:

,

4. Encrypted Web Site. If ̂ End IJser is empioyirig tee Web to trahismit Corifidehtial
Data;, tee secure socket layers, (SSL) must be uSed and the web site rhust be
secure. SSL encrypts data tî hsmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also krio^ as File Sharing Sites. End User rhay hot use file
hosting services, such as propbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential bate.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within tee continental U.S. arid when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices rinust tw encrypted and password-protected.

8._ Open Wireless Networks. End User may not tiansmit Confidential Date via ah open
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wireless networit. End User must employ a virtual private networit (VPN) when ■
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access, or toansmit Confidential Data, a vjrtual private network (VPN) must be
install^ on the End User's mobile deylce(s) or laptop from.which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Prptocol. If
End User Is eniploylng an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End. User will

.  structure the Folder arid access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
' information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used'for transmitting Confidential Data will

be coded for 24-hour a'utq-deletion cycle (i.e^ Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data vla.vvireless devices, all
.  data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. ■

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSltlON OF IDENTIFIABl^ RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such .time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Coritractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process' data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloiid service or cloud storage capabilities, arid includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure. proper security monitoring capabilities-are in
place to detect potential security .events, that can impact State of NH systerhs
and/or Oepartrfient confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information,

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2.

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulatigns regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systeiihs. the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive lntrusior>-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensur^ Its complete, cooperation with the State's
Chief Infonmatlon Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Cofitractor will rhalntain any Corifldential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon-request or coritract termination;, and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
.Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When np longer in use. electronic media containing State of

.  •. New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with, industry-accepted standards, for secure deletion and media ■
sanitization, or ■ otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in hi 1ST Special Publicatiori 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for. Media Sanitization; National Institute of Standards and Technology; U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by ttie Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenvise specified, within thirty (30) days of the terminalion of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.- . .

3. Unless othenvise specified, within , thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees .to completely destroy all electroriic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR iSECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect, Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information llfecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

V5.Lo«upd«tel(K>Q/18 ExhIbltK Contraaor Initials
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH .systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Infotmatlori.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance, to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including^^breach notification requlrerhents.

7. The Contractor will vyork with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
arid procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreernents as part of
obtaining and maintaining :access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate puieuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compllahce with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at.Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose orthe survey is'to e'riable .the Department and
Contractor to monitor, for any changes in risks, threats, and vulner^abilltles that may
occur .over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey .vyill be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be. completed when the
scope of the erigagement tsetween the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, kriowlngly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Ihforrriation Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the eyent of any security breach Contractor shall
make .efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach arid minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
• costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security -of Confidential inforrnation. and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies.• including,'
but not limited to. provisions, of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State lavy.

13. Contractor agrees to'establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards tp protect the .confidentiality .of the Confidential Data and to

.. prevent unauthorized,use or access to it. the safeguards musfprovide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://wyw.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.hlm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement inforrnation relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification - and. Incident
response process. The Contractor vyill notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer, of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses

■provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential inforrnation,breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to. the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users.who need such DHHS Data to^
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.
c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or

PFi are encrypted and password-protected.
d. send emails containing Confidential Information onlv If encrvoted and l)eing

sent to and being received by ernail addresses of-persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiatDle data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
blometiic identifiers,.etc.).

• g'. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when iri transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

*

i. understand that their u^r crederitials (user name and password), must not
. shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential inforrhation secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible, for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsile inspections to monitor, compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA.

- and other applicable laws .and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches imniediately; at the ertiail addresses provided in
Section VI, ■ . ■

the Contractor must further handle and report Incidents arid Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance v^th the agency's [documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Coritractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures miist also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;.

2. Determjrie if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing,, source, and contend from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
'  applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSpNS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

.  B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInforrnationSecurity0.ffice@dhhs.nh.g6v
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